
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving City of Stoughton Park 
Design Guidelines  


 
Committee Action:  Parks & Recreation Committee recommended 6-0 on 11/15/22 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None  


File Number: 
 
R-19-2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
February 14, 2023 


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 
 


WHEREAS, the purpose of the City of Stoughton Park Design Guidelines (guidelines) is to 
provide direction to staff, consultants, contractors and developers in the design, construction, and 
maintenance of public parks, open space, trails , and recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the guidelines will be used as a tool in evaluating submittals for all new parks and 
any significant changes to existing parks, and  
 
WHEREAS, the guidelines provide general planning and design policies to be followed, and 
 
WHEREAS, the guidelines provide site selection and planning principles, and  
 
WHEREAS, the guidelines provide park design and development guidelines, and  
 
WHEREAS, the guidelines provide a minimum criteria for site selection and a weighted criteria 
to evaluate site selection for new parks, and 
 
WHEREAS, the guidelines are a working document and should be evaluated periodically for 
updates to follow industry trends; now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the City 
of Stoughton Park Design Guidelines.  


 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
 
            







 
T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\02-14-2023\11 R-19-2023 Park Design Guidelines Resolution.docx 
0210231031 
 


Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 







 


 


 


 


From: Dan Glynn, Director of Parks & Recreation  


To: City Council 


Subject: Park Design Guidelines    


Date: January 18, 2023 


 


The purpose of having park design guidelines is to provide direction to City staff, consultants, 
contractors, and developers in the design, construction, and maintenance of public parks, open space, 
trails, and recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton. The document will be used as a tool in evaluating 
submittals for all new parks and any significant changes to parks.  


Not unlike other communities, the City’s park system has flaws. This document should assist in 
preventing the same flaws with site selection guidance, placing compatible amenities in parks, and 
following best practices. While this document is not complete, it does cover significant ground in park 
site selection, park and trail design, and development. Future additions to the document may include 
standards such as amenities (tables, shelters, etc), landscapes (trees, prairies, etc), and/or maintenance 
standards.  


There is no fiscal impact to adopting the guidelines. Changes to existing parks can be phased in over 
years when amenities age out and need to be replaced.  


 


 


    







Park Design Guidelines 
Dan Glynn


Director of Parks & Recreation







Purpose & Goals 


 Purpose
 Provide direction to everyone working on parks – staff, consultants, developers, 


etc


 Tool for evaluating new parks and significant changes to existing parks


 Goals
 Provide guidance to developers for site selection and development 


 Create a standard for parks, park equipment, and amenities







How did we get there? 


 Need
 Existing parks with amenities that are not suitable for the type of park that are 


located in.


 Developers unaware of park system needs, wants, and/or desires
 Negotiating process


 Not aware of any other local agencies with guidelines


 Popular nationally


 Conversations with park planners and wildlife specialists with DNR 


 Reference materials 







Site Selection Example







General Planning & Design Policies







General Planning & Design Policies 


 Best practices for planning and design
 Public input 


 Involving maintenance and recreation program staff in design process


 Layout to minimize neighborhood conflicts 


 Visibility 


 ADA Compliance 


 Sustainable design 







Site Selection and Planning Principles 


 Consistency with other plans such as the Comprehensive Outdoor 
Recreation Plan


 Environmental Protection


 Accessibility & Connectivity 
 Walkability for neighborhood and mini parks 


 Efficient and connected bike and pedestrian transportation 







Park Design and Development 
Guidelines
 Differs by park type/classification 


 Community Park


 Neighborhood Park


 Mini Parks


 Special Use Parks


 Trail Corridors & Greenways


 Natural Areas


 Features and amenities to consider and to avoid depending on park type







Community Park


 Diverse recreational activity and serve several neighborhoods.


 10+ acres


 Visitors arrive by car, bike, or foot. 


 Stoughton example – Racetrack Park 







Community Park:
Site Selection & Development Guidelines


 Two-thirds or more of the site should be available for active recreation use.


 Active recreation use typically for programmed activities  


 Buffering


 Visibility and frontage


 Parking


 Access
 Arterial or collector street


 Trail corridor and/or greenway connectivity 







Community Parks: 
Features & Amenities to Consider 


 Playgrounds


 Open turf areas for unstructured play


 Designated sport fields. Fields may be 
in a complex within the park. 


 Looped pathway system


 Permanent restrooms


 Tennis and pickleball courts. Courts 
may be in a complex within the park. 


 Concessions or vendor space 


 Field lighting


 Off-street parking


 Skate park


 Splash pad


 Off-leash dog area


 Community gardens


 Interpretive signage 


 Public art


 Indoor Recreation Center


 Landscape improvements including 
tree plantings


 Storage or maintenance buildings







Neighborhood Park


 Serve a variety of age groups within a limited area or neighborhood. 


 Typically include space for unstructured active recreational use.


 Typical size is between 3-10 acres


 Stoughton example – East Park 







Neighborhood Park:
Site Selection & Development Guidelines


 Slopes


 Visibility & Frontage 


 Access
 Sidewalks & Trail Corridor and/or Greenway 


 Parking


 Placement of noise producing amenities 


 Neighborhood feel 







Neighborhood Parks:
Features & Amenities to Consider
 Playgrounds 


 Open turf area for unstructured play


 Basketball (full or half) court


 Volleyball court


 Multi-use fields for practice 


 Picnic tables


 Small picnic shelter 


 Pathway connecting park elements 


 Interpretive signage 


 Natural area (if present at site)


 Portable or permanent restrooms 


 Landscape improvements including 
tree planting 


 On-street parking







Neighborhood Park: 
Features & Amenities to Avoid
 Horticulture or annual plantings unless sponsored and maintained by a 


neighborhood or community group


 Indoor recreation center 


 Wading pools and similar types of amenities that require staff supervision or 
highly specialized maintenance 


 Sports fields for league play 


 Off-street parking 







Mini Park


 Typically placed in underserved areas


 Typically function as a neighborhood park


 Typical size is 1 acre or less


 Stoughton example – Criddle Park 







Mini Parks:
Site Selection & Development Guidelines


 Slopes


 Visibility/Frontage 


 Access







Mini Parks: 
Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid


To Consider:


 Open air shelter or small event 
space


 Children’s playground including 
specialized play equipment such 
as tot lots 


 Half basketball court 


 Community garden


 Landscape improvements 
including tree planting 


To Avoid:


 Off-street parking


 Permanent restrooms 







Special Use Park


 Specialized or single purpose spaces


 Event spaces, plazas, nature centers, etc


 No set standard size


 Stoughton example – Rotary Park 







Special Use Park:
Site Selection & Development Guidelines


 Size should be scaled to intended use


 Access







Special use Parks: 
Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid


To Consider:


 Special use facility or facilities


 Portable or permanent restrooms


 Landscape improvements


 On-street or off-street parking 


 Pathway system


 Seating 


To Avoid:


 Uses that conflict or detract from 
the special use 







Trail Corridors & Greenways 


 Include both developed, landscaped corridors and more natural, less 
developed greenways 


 Users arrive by car, bicycle, or foot


 Stoughton example – River Trail 







Trail Corridors & Greenways:
Site Selection & Development Guidelines 


 Follow continues special feature strips


 Corridor width 


 Connectivity 


 Trail surface 







Trail Corridors & Greenways:
Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid 
To Consider:
 Paved pathways
 Viewpoints
 Seating areas
 Picnic tables
 Wayfinding signage
 Trailhead or entry kiosk 
 Landscaped areas, ornamental plantings, 


turf areas
 Maintained natural vegetation
 Fences, landscaping, or other features to 


control access near adjoining residential 
areas


 Parking at major trailheads 


To Avoid:


 Active use facilities such as sport 
fields and paved courts (only in 
trail corridor areas)







Natural Areas 


 Preserve or protect environmentally sensitive areas
 Wildlife habitats


 River corridors 


 Plant species 


 Users arrive by car, bicycle, or foot


 Use a trail within the natural area


 Stoughton example – Yahara River wetlands behind the industrial park 







Natural Areas:
Site Selection & Development Guidelines


 Size should be dictated by natural resource


 Acquisition


 Development and site improvements 


 Site use 


 Parking considerations 







Natural Areas:
Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid


To Consider:
 Interpretive signage
 Small picnic shelter
 Limited picnic areas
 Trail and pathway system 
 Trailhead or entry kiosk
 Viewpoints
 Interpretive or education facilities 
 Portable or permanent restrooms 


(depending on facilities and anticipated 
amount of site use)


 On-street or off-street parking (depending 
on anticipated amount of site use


To Avoid:


 Depends on site 







Guidance for Developers







Design & Review Process for City Parks


Scoping/Programming 
Meeting Site Selection Review Park Master Plan Review


Design Development 
(30% & 60% Construction 


Documents)
90% Construction 


Documents
Final Documents (Bid 


Document) Pre-Construction Construction Post-Construction







Site Selection Process, Minimum 
Criteria, and Weighted Criteria 
 Site selection process is used for the continuing acquisition of open space 


for new parks and public recreation areas. 
 Typically a site within a new development 


 Minimum Criteria 


 Weighted Criteria 







Minimum Criteria


 Site size – 90% of land required per the parkland dedication requirement 


 Slopes – 5% or less in 10% of the land 


 Contiguous 


 Frontage – 50% of frontage by public street, public areas, and/or 
undeveloped land with no rear residential lots adjacent to the park. 


 Existing conditions – no overhead utility lines, easements, unstable soils, 
floodplains, wetlands, toxic conditions 


 Pedestrian and bikeway connectivity 







Weighted Criteria 


 Two different weighted criteria
 Base Criteria


 Bonus Criteria 







Weighted Criteria: Base


 Dedication Percent 
 100% of parkland dedication: 30 points


 91-99% of parkland dedication: 15 points


 90% of parkland dedication: 5 points


 Slopes
 Slopes of 5% or less in 50% or more of parkland: 15 points


 Slopes of 5% or less in 25-49% of parkland: 10 points


 Slopes of 5% or less in 10-24% of parkland: 5 points 


 Frontages
 80-100% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land: 25 points


 60-79% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land: 15 points


 50-59% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land: 5 points


 Connectivity
 Park is connected with a 75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor: 30 points


 Park is connected with a 50-75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor: 15 points


 Park is connected to other parks with off-road trail: 5 points







Weighted Criteria: Bonus


 Historical or cultural resources on-site: 10 points


 Undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife 
habitat: 10 points


 Park size is over 10 acres: 5 points


 Park can be expanded with future development: 5 points


 Waterfront access: 5 points


 Healthy, established, mature, and non-invasive trees: 5 points


 Land dedication is over the parkland dedication requirement by 10%: 5 
points







Point Test
Park Base Score Bonus Score Total Score
Bjoin 70 5 75
Dunkirk 50 5 55
East Side 60 5 65
Lowell 60 15 75
Nordic Ridge 50 0 50
Norse 45 0 45
Schefelker 45 20 65
Veterans 60 10 70
Virgin Lake 75 0 75
Westview Ridge 45 0 45
51 West (East) 75 0 75
51 West (West) 65 0 65
KPW 75 15 90
Stonecrest 65 10 75
Magnolia Springs 50 20 70
Average 66.3333333







Site Evaluation Report 


 Report completed by the developer


 Summarizes the site and why it was selected over other areas  


 Utilizes the minimum and weighted criteria


 Provides clarity to the Parks & Recreation Committee on why it is a good or 
bad site







Future 


 Working document


 Other park design guideline documents have sections that specify:
 Size, scale, and type of amenities


 Service levels 







Questions





		11 R-19-2023 Park Design Guidelines Resolution

		11a Park Design Guidelines Memo

		11b Park Design Guidelines Presentation

		Park Design Guidelines 	

		Purpose & Goals 

		How did we get there? 

		Site Selection Example

		General Planning & Design Policies

		General Planning & Design Policies 

		Site Selection and Planning Principles 

		Park Design and Development Guidelines

		Community Park

		Community Park:�Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Community Parks: �Features & Amenities to Consider 

		Neighborhood Park

		Neighborhood Park:�Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Neighborhood Parks:�Features & Amenities to Consider

		Neighborhood Park: �Features & Amenities to Avoid

		Mini Park

		Mini Parks:�Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Mini Parks: �Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid

		Special Use Park

		Special Use Park:�Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Special use Parks: �Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid

		Trail Corridors & Greenways 

		Trail Corridors & Greenways:�Site Selection & Development Guidelines 

		Trail Corridors & Greenways:�Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid 

		Natural Areas 

		Natural Areas:�Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Natural Areas:�Features & Amenities to Consider & Avoid

		Guidance for Developers

		Design & Review Process for City Parks

		Site Selection Process, Minimum Criteria, and Weighted Criteria 

		Minimum Criteria

		Weighted Criteria 

		Weighted Criteria: Base

		Weighted Criteria: Bonus

		Point Test

		Site Evaluation Report 

		Future 

		Questions








 
City of Stoughton, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving a financial agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the City of Stoughton for costs 


associated with the reconstruction of S. Fourth Street from Milwaukee Street to Isham Street 
scheduled to be constructed in 2025. 


 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee   


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
City - $621,691 (estimate) 
Stoughton Utilities – $1,004,7000 (estimate – scope TBD) 


 
File Number: 


 
R-20-2023 


 
Date Introduced 


 
February 14, 2023 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton was awarded partial grant funding through the Surface 
Transportation Program – Urban , which allocated funding from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) 
program, to reconstruct Fourth St. from Milwaukee St to Isham; and 
 
WHEREAS, in cooperation with the City, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT) is 
scheduled to reconstruct S. Fourth Street from Milwaukee Street to Isham Street, in 2025 (the 
“Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, a financial agreement has been prepared for the City’s contribution to the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, up to $834,469 of Federal Funding is available for this project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s portion is estimated to be $621,691; and 
 
WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities is evaluating their systems for possible inclusion in the project; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the State/Municipal Financial 
Agreement For A State –Let STP-Urban Project (S. Fourth Street from Milwaukee Street to Isham Street), 
is hereby approved, Mayor Swadley is authorized and directed to execute the Agreement on behalf of the 
City, and the City Finance Director is authorized to pay the Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
pursuant to such Agreement. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                             
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     







 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-- 2022 Resolution approving  agreement with DOT - USH 51 - Roby to CTH B.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
 
Date:  February 2, 2023 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: State/Municipal Financial Agreement (SMFA) – S. Fourth Street from Milwaukee 


Street to Isham Street 
 
 
On November 15, 2021, the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) was approved by the United 
States Congress and signed into Law by President Joe Biden.  This law allocated funding to the 
states to distribute to various forms of government within the state for infrastructure 
improvements.  The City of Stoughton applied for, and was awarded partial funding to 
reconstruct S. Fourth St, from Milwaukee St to Isham St through the Surface Transportation 
Program – Urban (STP), which was the vehicle that allocated the BIL funding at the state level.    
 
All work will be administered through the Wisconsin Department of Transportation (DOT), in 
coordination with City of Stoughton staff.  Furthermore, all project engineering, water and 
sanitary work is not included in the grant and must be paid for by the City, which includes 
Stoughton Utilities.  Construction on S. Fourth St is scheduled to begin in 2025.   
 
The grant award is for 60% of the project cost, not to exceed $834,469.  The preliminary design 
includes reconstruction of the street with a 10-foot shared-use path to be installed on the west 
side of the street (the existing sidewalk will be removed).  The City’s estimated share of the cost 
is $621,691.   
 
Stoughton Utilities is evaluating their system and may be part of this project. 
 
A resolution and Agreement is included for your consideration 
 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 
 
 
S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Finance 2-2-2023 - DOT SFMA - Fourth St.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





  


 


Mr. Hebert: 


Enclosed for signature is the project agreement for the following project that has approved funds in the FFY 2023-2026 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (BIL) STP-Urban Program.  


 


Project I.D.: 5998-00-00/01/02 


City of Stoughton, S Fourth Street 


Milwaukee Street to Isham Street 


 


Please sign and return one (1) copy of the agreement. Electronic signatures are acceptable.  Return the copy of the 
agreement by e-mail to the Department with signatures by Friday, February 24, 2023 to this address: 


 


michael.erickson@dot.wi.gov   


 


Note the cost ratios for each project phase and any federal/state funding limits which may exist. The Municipality is 
responsible for the entire cost of non-participating items as well as any costs which exceed the funding limits, if 
applicable.  


 


An agreement is not considered fully approved unless it has been approved by both the Municipality and the State, and 
it is not considered fully executed unless a fully approved copy has been returned to the Municipality. 


 


The Municipality and its consultants (or any other parties hired by the Municipality) MUST NOT begin work on a 
federal/state-funded project phase until the State has provided notice of project authorization. Any such work would be 
ineligible for federal/state funding. Authorization will coincide with the currently scheduled year that is stated in the 
agreement. 


 


Our office will be working with the local sponsor as we move forward with these design and construction projects. Mark 
Sponem is the Local Program Project Manager (LPPM) for these projects, and you can contact her at: (608) 245-2627 


or mark.sponem@dot.wi.gov . 
 


If you have any questions regarding the agreement or need an extension to the submittal date, please call me at (608) 
789-7879 or e-mail robert.winterton@dot.wi.gov. 


 


Sincerely, 


Robert Winterton 


Robert Winterton, P.E. 


Local Programs Engineer – SW Region 


WisDOT Division of Transportation System Development 
Southwest Region – La Crosse Office 
3550 Mormon Coulee Road 
La Crosse, WI 54601 


Governor Tony Evers 


Secretary Craig Thompson 


wisconsindot.gov 


Telephone: (608) 789-7879 


FAX: (608) 785-9969 


Email: robert.winterton@dot.wi.gov 
 


January 26, 2023 


BRETT HEBERT 
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS 
CITY OF STOUGHTON 
2439 COUNTY RD A 
STOUGHTON, WI 53589 







  


                                                                                 Page 1 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


 


 
STATE/MUNICIPAL AGREEMENT 
FOR A STATE- LET STP-URBAN 


PROJECT 


 


 


 


Program Name: STP-Urban 


Population Group: 200,000+ 
Sub-program #: 206 
Cycle: FFY 2023-2026 BIL 
 


Date: January 26, 2023  


I.D.: 5998-00-00/01/02 


Road Name: Fourth Street 


Limits: Milwaukee Street to Isham Street 


County: Dane 


Roadway Length: 0.30 miles 


Functional Classification: Urban Collector 


Project Sponsor: City of Stoughton 


 
 
The signatory, City of Stoughton, hereinafter called the Municipality, through its undersigned duly authorized 
officers or officials, hereby requests the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the 
State, to initiate and effect the highway or street improvement hereinafter described. 
 
The authority for the Municipality to enter into this agreement with the State is provided by Sections 86.25(1), (2), 
and (3) and Section 66.0301 of the Statutes. 
 


 
 
NEEDS AND ESTIMATE SUMMARY: 
 
All components of the project must be defined in the environmental document if any portion of the project is 
federally funded. The Municipality agrees to complete all participating and any non-participating work included in 
this improvement consistent with the environmental document. No work on final engineering and design may 
occur prior to approval of the environmental document.  
 
Existing Facility - Describe and give reason for request: The existing roadway is a 2-lane Urban Collector.  It 
is a 40-foot wide facility with an urban cross section constructed of asphalt pavement.  The roadway 
was last improved in 1996.  The roadway has a pavement rating of 3.5 with significant transverse and 
longitudinal cracking.  There are existing sidewalks on one side of the roadway and no bicycle 
accommodations. 
 
Proposed Improvement - Nature of work: A reconstruction project from Milwaukee Street to Isham Street is 
proposed.  The project will be 0.30 miles in length constructed of asphalt pavement with an urban cross 
section that is 33 to 39 feet wide.  A new 10-foot wide multi-use path will replace the existing sidewalk on 
the west side.  Storm sewer, sanitary sewer and water main will be replaced.  Real estate acquisition is 
not anticipated. 
 


Describe non-participating work included in the project and other work necessary to completely finish the project 
that will be undertaken independently by the Municipality. Please note that non-participating components of a 
project/contract are considered part of the overall project and will be subject to applicable federal requirements: 
Municipal sanitary sewer and water main. 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


                                                                                 Page 2 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


 


The Municipality agrees to the following FFY 2023-2026 BIL STP-Urban project funding conditions: 
  
Project ID 5998-00-00 design costs are funded 100% by the Municipality including state review. 
  
Project ID 5998-00-01 construction costs are funded with up to 60% federal funding up to a funding limit of 
$834,469. The Municipality agrees to provide the remaining 40% and any funds in excess of the $834,469 
federal funding limit. Non-participating costs are 100% the responsibility of the Municipality. Any work 
performed by the Municipality prior to federal authorization is not eligible for federal funding. The Municipality 
will be notified by the State that the project is authorized and available for charging. 
 
Project ID 5998-00-02 construction costs for sanitary sewer and water main are funded 100% by the 
Municipality including state review. 
 
This project is currently scheduled in State Fiscal Year 2025.  Sunset date: June 30, 2030. 
 
Sunset Date is determined based on the date a project is scheduled to be authorized. Sunset date is 
calculated as six years from the beginning of the state fiscal year (SFY) in which a project is initially 
scheduled.  Extensions may be available upon approval of a written request by or on behalf of the Municipality 
to State per WisDOT Change Management policy. The written request shall explain the reasons for project 
implementation delay and revised timeline for project completion.  
 
Extensions may be available upon approval of a written request by or on behalf of the Municipality to State. 
The written request shall explain the reasons for project implementation delay and revised timeline for project 
completion. 
 
The dollar amounts shown in the Summary of Costs Table below are estimates. The final Municipal share is 
dependent on the final federal participation, and actual costs will be used in the final division of cost for billing 
and reimbursement. In no event shall federal funding exceed the estimate of $834,469 in the Summary of 
Costs Table, unless such increase is approved in writing by the State through the State’s Change Management 
Policy prior to the Municipality incurring the increased costs.  


              
             *Construction ID# 5998-00-01 federal funding is limited to $834,469. 
 


PHASE Total Est. Cost Federal Funds  %


Municipal 


Funds %


ID 5998-00-00
Design $0 $0 0% $0 100%
State Review $39,326 $0 0% $39,326 100%


Project totals $39,326 $0 $39,326


ID 5998-00-01*


Participating Construction $1,295,760 $742,549.96 60% $553,210.04 40% + BAL


Non-Participating Construction $0 $0 0% $0 100%


Construction Engineering $140,000 $80,228.59 60% $59,771.41 40% + BAL
State Review $20,400 $11,690.45 60% $8,709.55 40% + BAL


Project totals $1,456,160 $834,469 $621,691


ID 5998-00-02


Non-Participating Construction $994,750 $0 0% $994,750 100%
State Review $9,950 $0 0% $9,950 100%


Project totals $1,004,700 $0 $1,004,700


Total Est. Cost Distribution   $2,500,186 $834,469 N/A $1,665,717 N/A


SUMMARY OF COSTS







  


                                                                                 Page 3 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


This request is subject to the terms and conditions that follow and is made by the undersigned under proper 
authority to make such request for the designated Municipality and upon signature by the State and delivery to 
the Municipality shall constitute agreement between the Municipality and the State. No term or provision of 
neither the State/Municipal Agreement nor any of its attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally 
but only by an instrument in writing executed by both parties to the State/Municipal Agreement.  
 
 
Signatures certify the content has not been altered by the municipality. 


Signed for and in behalf of: City of Stoughton (please sign in blue ink.) 
                                                     


      
Name                                                           Title                                                                            Date 
 
Signed for and in behalf of the State: 


                                                                                        


 Name            Title          Date                                   
 
 
 
 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
1. All projects must be in an approved Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) or State Transportation 


Improvement Program (STIP) prior to requesting authorization. 
 
2. Work prior to federal authorization is ineligible for federal funding.  
 
3. The Municipality, throughout the entire project, commits to comply with and promote all applicable federal 


and state laws and regulations that include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 


a. Environmental requirements, including but not limited to those set forth in the 23 U.S.C. 139 and 
National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq.) 
 


b. Equal protection guaranteed under the U.S. Constitution, WI Constitution, Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act and Wis. Stat. 16.765. The municipality agrees to comply with and promote applicable Federal and 
State laws, Executive Orders, regulations, and implementing requirements intended to provide for the 
fair and equitable treatment of individuals and the fair and equitable delivery of services to the public. 
In addition the Municipality agrees not to engage in any illegal discrimination in violation of applicable 
Federal or State laws and regulations. This includes but is not limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964 which provides that “no person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or 
national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” The Municipality 
agrees that public funds, which are collected in a nondiscriminatory manner, should not be used in 
ways that subsidize, promote, or perpetuate illegal discrimination based on prohibited factors such as 
race, color, national origin, sex, age, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, or retaliation. 
 


c. Prevailing wage requirements, including but not limited to 23 U.S.C 113. 
 


d. Buy America Provision and its equivalent state statutes, set forth in 23 U.S.C. 313 and Wis. Stat. 
16.754. 


 
e. Competitive bidding and confidentiality requirements set forth in 23 U.S.C 112 and Wis. Stat. 84.06. 


This includes the sharing of financial data prior to the conclusion of the competitive bid period. 
 


f. All applicable Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) requirements that the State specifies. 
 
g. Federal statutes that govern the Surface Transportation Program (STP), including but not limited to 23 


U.S.C. 133.  
 


h. General requirements for administrating federal and state aids set forth in Wis. Stat. 84.03.  







  


                                                                                 Page 4 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


 


STATE RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS: 
 
4. Funding of each project phase is subject to inclusion in Wisconsin’s approved FFY 2023-2026 BIL STP-


Urban program. Federal funding will be limited to participation in the costs of the following items, as 
applicable to the project:  


 
a. The grading, base, pavement, and curb and gutter, sidewalk, and replacement of disturbed driveways 


in kind.  
 


b. The substructure, superstructure, grading, base, pavement, and other related bridge and approach 
items.  


 
c. Storm sewer mains necessary for the surface water drainage. 


 
d. Catch basins and inlets for surface water drainage of the improvement, with connections to the storm 


sewer main. 
 
e. Construction engineering incident to inspection and supervision of actual construction work (except for 


inspection, staking, and testing of sanitary sewer and water main). 
 
f. Signing and pavement marking.  


 
g. New installations or alteration of street lighting and traffic signals or devices.  


 
h. Landscaping. 


 
i. State review services for construction ID 5998-00-01.  


 
5. The work will be administered by the State and may include items not eligible for federal participation. 


 
6. As the work progresses, the State will bill the Municipality for work completed that is not chargeable to 


federal/state funds. Upon completion of the project, a final audit will be made to determine the final division 
of costs subject to funding limits in the Summary of Costs Table. If reviews or audits show any of the work to 
be ineligible for federal/state funding, the Municipality will be responsible for any withdrawn costs associated 
with the ineligible work. 


 
MUNICIPAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIREMENTS: 
 
7. Work necessary to complete the FFY 2023-2026 BIL STP-Urban improvement project to be financed 


entirely by the Municipality or other utility or facility owner includes the items listed below.  
 


a. New installations of or alteration of sanitary sewers and connections, water, gas, electric, telephone, 
telegraph, fire or police alarm facilities, parking meters, and similar utilities. 


 
b. Damages to abutting property after project completion due to change in street or sidewalk widths, 


grades or drainage.  
 


c. Detour routes and haul roads. The municipality is responsible for determining the detour route.  


 
d. Conditioning, if required and maintenance of detour routes. 


 
e. Repair of damages to roads or streets caused by reason of their use in hauling materials incidental to 


the improvement. 


 
f. All work related to underground storage tanks and contaminated soils. 


 







  


                                                                                 Page 5 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


g. Street and bridge width in excess of standards, in accordance with the current WisDOT Facilities 
Development Manual (FDM).  


 
h. Real estate for the improvement. 


 
i. Preliminary engineering and design. 


 
j. Stage review services for design ID 5998-00-00 & construction ID 5998-00-02. 
 
k. Other 100% Municipality funded items: None. 


 
8. The construction of the subject improvement will be in accordance with the appropriate standards unless an 


exception to standards is granted by State prior to construction. The entire cost of the construction project, 
not constructed to standards, will be the responsibility of the Municipality unless such exception is granted.  
 


9. Work to be performed by the Municipality without federal funding participation necessary to ensure a 
complete improvement acceptable to the Federal Highway Administration and/or the State may be done in a 
manner at the election of the Municipality but must be coordinated with all other work undertaken during 
construction. 


 
10. The Municipality is responsible for financing administrative expenses related to Municipal project 


responsibilities.  
 


11. The Municipality will include in all contracts executed by them a provision obligating the contractor not to 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, religion, color, 
handicap, sex, physical condition, developmental disability as defined in Wis. Stat. 51.01 (5), sexual 
orientation as defined in Wis. Stat. 111.32 (13m), or national origin.  
 


12. The Municipality will pay to the State all costs incurred by the State in connection with the improvement that 
exceed federal/state financing commitments or are ineligible for federal/state financing. To guarantee the 
Municipality’s foregoing agreements to pay the State, the Municipality, through its above duly authorized 
officers or officials, agrees and authorizes the State to set off and withhold the required reimbursement 
amount as determined by the State from any moneys otherwise due and payable by the State to the 
Municipality. 


 
13. In accordance with the State’s sunset policy for STP-Urban projects, the subject FFY 2023-2026 BIL STP-


Urban improvement must be constructed and in final acceptance within six years from the beginning of the 
state fiscal year (SFY) in which a project is initially scheduled. Extensions may be available upon approval 
of a written request by or on behalf of the Municipality to State. The written request shall explain the reasons 
for project implementation delay and revised timeline for project completion. 


 
14. If the Municipality should withdraw the project, it will reimburse the State for any costs incurred on behalf of 


the project. 
 


15. The Municipality will at its own cost and expense: 
 


a. Maintain all portions of the project that lie within its jurisdiction (to include, but not limited to, 
cleaning storm sewers, removing debris from sumps or inlets, and regular maintenance of the 
catch basins, curb and gutter, sidewalks and parking lanes [including snow and ice removal]) for 
such maintenance in a manner consistent with reasonable industry standards, and will make ample 
provision for such maintenance each year. 


 
b. Regulate [or prohibit] parking at all times in the vicinity of the proposed improvements during their 


construction. 
 
c. Regulate [or prohibit] all parking at locations where and when the pavement area usually occupied 


by parked vehicles will be needed to carry active traffic in the street. 
 







  


                                                                                 Page 6 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


d. Assume general responsibility for all public information and public relations for the project and to 
make fitting announcement to the press and such outlets as would generally alert the affected 
property owners and the community of the nature, extent, and timing of the project and 
arrangements for handling traffic within and around the project. 


 
e. Provide complete plans, specifications, and estimates to State upon request.  


 
f. Provide relocation orders and real estate plats to State upon request. 


 


g. Use the WisDOT Utility Accommodation Policy unless it adopts a policy, which has equal or more 
restrictive controls. 
 


h. Provide maintenance and energy for lighting. 
 
i. Provide proper care and maintenance of all landscaping elements of the project including 


replacement of any plant materials damaged by disease, drought, vandalism or other cause. 
 


16. It is further agreed by the Municipality that:  
 


a. The Municipality assumes full responsibility for the design, installation, testing and operation of any 
sanitary sewer and water main infrastructure within the improvement project and relieves the state 
and all of its employees from liability for all suits, actions, or claims resulting from the sanitary 
sewer and water main construction under this agreement.  


 
b. The Municipality assumes full responsibility for the plans and special provisions provided by their 


designer or anyone hired, contracted or otherwise engaged by the Municipality. The Municipality is 
responsible for any expense or cost resulting from any error or omission in such plans or special 
provisions. The Municipality will reimburse State if State incurs any cost or expense in order to 
correct or otherwise remedy such error or omission or consequences of such error or omission.  


 
c. The Municipality will be 100% responsible for all costs associated with utility issues involving the 


Contractor, including costs related to utility delays.  
 
d. All signs and traffic control devices and other protective structures erected on or in connection with 


the project including such of these as are installed at the sole cost and expense of the Municipality 
or by others, will be in conformity with such Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices as may be 
adopted by the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials, approved by 
the State, and concurred in by the Federal Highway Administration.  


 
e. The right-of-way available or provided for the project will be held and maintained inviolate for public 


highway or street purposes. Those signs prohibited under federal aid highway regulations, posters, 
billboards, roadside stands, or other private installations prohibited by federal or state highway 
regulations will not be permitted within the right-of-way limits of the project. The Municipality, within 
its jurisdictional limits, will remove or cause to be removed from the right-of-way of the project all 
private installations of whatever nature which may be or cause an obstruction or interfere with the 
free flow of traffic, or which may be or cause a hazard to traffic, or which impair the usefulness of 
the project and all other encroachments which may be required to be removed by the State at its 
own election or at the request of the Federal Highway Administration, and that no such installations 
will be permitted to be erected or maintained in the future.  


 
f. The Municipality is responsible for any damage caused by legally hauled loads, including permitted 


oversize and overweight loads. The contractor is responsible for any damage caused to haul roads 
if the contractor does not obey size and weight laws, use properly equipped and maintained 
vehicles, and does not prevent spilling of materials onto the haul road (WisDOT Standard 
Specifications 618.1, 108.7, 107.8). The local maintaining authority can impose special or 
seasonal weight limitations as defined in Wis. Stat. 349.16, but this should not be used for the sole 
purpose of preventing hauling on the road. 
 







  


                                                                                 Page 7 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


The bid item 618.0100 Maintenance and Repair of Haul Roads (project) is ineligible for federal 
funding on local program projects as per the State/Municipal Agreement. The repair of damages 
as a result of hauling materials for the project is the responsibility of the Municipality as specified in 
the State/Municipal Agreement Terms and Conditions under “Municipal Responsibilities and 
Requirements.”   
 


LEGAL RELATIONSHIPS:  
 
17. The State shall not be liable to the Municipality for damages or delays resulting from work by third parties. 


The State also shall be exempt from liability to the Municipality for damages or delays resulting from 
injunctions or other restraining orders obtained by third parties. 


 
18. The State will not be liable to any third party for injuries or damages resulting from work under or for the 


Project. The Municipality and the Municipality’s surety shall indemnify and save harmless the State, its 
officers and employees, from all suits, actions or claims of any character brought because of any injuries or 
damages received or sustained by any person, persons or property on account of the operations of the 
Municipality and its sureties; or on account of or in consequence of any neglect in safeguarding the work; or 
because of any act or omission, neglect or misconduct of the Municipality or its sureties; or because of any 
claims or amounts recovered for any infringement by the Municipality and its sureties of patent, trademark or 
copyright; or from any claims or amounts arising or recovered under the Worker's Compensation Act, 
relating to the employees of the Municipality and its sureties; or any other law, ordinance, order or decree 
relating to the Municipality's operations.  


 
19. Contract modification: This State/Municipal Agreement can only be modified by written instruments duly 


executed by both parties. No term or provision of either this State/Municipal Agreement or any of its 
attachments may be changed, waived or terminated orally. 
 


20. Binding effects: All terms of this State/Municipal Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits 
of the legal representatives, successors and executors. No rights under this State/Municipal Agreement may 
be transferred to a third party. This State/Municipal Agreement creates no third-party enforcement rights. 


 


21. Choice of law and forum: This State/Municipal Agreement shall be interpreted and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Wisconsin. The Parties hereby expressly agree that the terms contained herein 
and in any deed executed pursuant to this State/Municipal Agreement are enforceable by an action in the 
Circuit Court of Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
PROJECT FUNDING CONDITIONS 


 
22. Non-appropriation of funds: With respect to any payment required to be made by the State under this 


State/Municipal Agreement, the parties acknowledge the State’s authority to make such payment is 
contingent upon appropriation of funds and required legislative approval sufficient for such purpose by the 
Legislature. If such funds are not so appropriated, either the Municipality or the State may terminate this 
State/Municipal Agreement after providing written notice not less than thirty (30) days before termination. 


 
23. Maintenance of records: During the term of performance of this State/Municipal Agreement, and for a period 


not less than three years from the date of final payment to the Municipality, records and accounts pertaining 
to the performance of this State/Municipal Agreement are to be kept available for inspection and audit by 
representatives of the State. The State reserves the right to audit and inspect such records and accounts at 
any time. The Municipality shall provide appropriate accommodations for such audit and inspection. 


 
In the event that any litigation, claim or audit is initiated prior to the expiration of said records maintenance 
period, the records shall be retained until such litigation, claim or audit involving the records is complete. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







  


                                                                                 Page 8 of 8                             ID 5998-00-00/01/02 – SW Region 


 


24. The Municipality agrees to the following FFY 2023-2026 BIL STP-Urban project funding conditions: 
 


a. ID 5998-00-00: Design is funded 100% by the Municipality. This phase includes plan development and 
state review. The work includes project review, approval of required reports and documents and 
processing the final Plan, Specification & Estimate (PS&E) document for award of the contract. Costs 
for this phase include an estimated amount for state review activities, to be funded 100% by the 
Municipality.  
 


b. ID 5998-00-01: Construction: Roadway 
 


i. Costs for participating construction items are funded with 60% federal funding up to a funding limit of 
$834,469, when the Municipality agrees to provide the remaining 40%, and any funds in excess of 
the $834,469 federal funding limit. 


 
       ii. Non-participating costs for non-participating construction items are funded 100% by the Municipality. 


Costs include construction delivery.  
 
iii. Costs for this phase include an estimated amount for state review activities, to be funded 60% with 


federal funding and 40% by the Municipality.  
 
c. ID 5998-00-02: Construction: Sanitary Sewer and Water Main 


 
       i.   Non-participating costs for sanitary sewer and water main are funded 100% by the Municipality. 


Costs include construction delivery.  
 
ii. Costs for this phase include an estimated amount for state review activities, to be funded 100% by the 


Municipality.  
 


[End of Document] 





		12 R-20-2023 Resolution approving  agreement with DOT - Fourth St - Milwaukee to Isham

		12a Public Works 2-2-2023 - DOT SFMA - Fourth St

		12b CL_CofStoughton_FourthStreet_5998-00-00,01,02

		12c CofStoughton_5998-00-00,01,02_FourthStreet_STP-Urban_SMA






WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for a Cigarette & Tobacco 
License Products Retail License from Madtown Smoke Shop 2, Inc., Agent Mohammad Awad, 
dba Madtown Smoke Shop 2 located at 2501 Jackson St., Suite 200


WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 


to said applicant,  now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 


official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue a Cigarette & Tobacco Products Retail 
License to the aforementioned applicant.


Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Cigarette and Tobacco Products Retail 
License to Madtown Smoke Shop 2, Inc. located at 2501 Jackson St., Suite 200.


Committee 


Action:Fiscal Impact: 


Public Safety recommends approval 5-0 on January 25, 2023
N/A 


File Number: R-21-2023
Date Introduced:   February 14, 2023


Tim Swadley, Mayor 


Date__________ 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


__________________________________________

























		13 R-21-2023 Smokeshhop Tobacco License (new) 2022- 2023

		06 R-184-2022 Tobacco License (new) 2022- 2023

		13 R- 184-2022 Tobacco License (new) 2022- 2023





		13a MADTOWN SMOKE SHOP 2 INC_Redacted










WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for a Class B Beer & Class C Wine 
License for Dairyland Desserts,  LLC, Lara Romine, Owner/Agent, for the premises located at 176 E. 
Main Street; and  


WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee met on January 25, 2023 to consider the terms of 
the liquor license application and upon favorable recommendation from the Public 
Safety Committee, approval. Now therefore  


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the 
proper city official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue a Class B Beer & Class C 
Wine License for Dairyland Desserts, LLC, Lara Romine, Owner/ Agent, dba Dairyland Dessert Cafe, 
for the premises located at 176 E. Main Street.  
Council Action:        Adopted    Failed Vote 


Mayoral Action:       Accept    Veto 


Tim, Swadley, Mayor Date 


Council Action:        Override Vote 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve a Class B Beer & Class C Wine 
License for  Dairyland Desserts, LLC, Lara Romine, Owner/Agent, dba Dairyland Dessert Cafe, for the 
premises located at 176 E. Main Street. 


Committee Action: Public Safety Committee recommends approval 5-0 on 1/25/22 


Fiscal Impact: License fee $200/annually 


 
File Number: R-22-2023 Date Introduced:   February 14, 2023 































Verified by CJC



cchristen

Highlight













		14 R-22-20223 Resolution approving a new Class B Beer & Class C Wine License for The Dairyland Dessert Cafe

		14a Dairyland Desserts Cafe_Redacted










 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator Licenses to various applicants. 


 
Committee 


 


 
N/A 


Fiscal Impact: N/A 


 
File Number: R-16-2023 


 
Date Introduced:   February 14, 2023 


 
WHEREAS the City Clerk’s office has received an application for an Operator’s License from 
the following applicants: 
 


Name      Place of Business 
  Justin Gose     Kwik Trip 
  David Erdman     American Legion Post 59 
  Pamela Layton    VFW Stoughton 
 
    
 
 
WHEREAS, the Police Chief and City Clerk have reviewed and approved the issuance of an 
Operator Licenses to said applicants, now therefore 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city 
official(s) be hereby authorized and directed to issue Operator Licenses to the above-named 
applicants. 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     
 
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
 
                                           
Tim Swadley, Mayor    Date 


 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote     
 
 







 








 


Meetings of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, February 14, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


Virtual: You can join the meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone via Zoom:     
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87235891261?pwd=a0U5a09ndzc2TFVKdXdIM1BaS3cwUT09 
Meeting ID: 872 3589 1261 
Passcode: 817725 
One tap mobile +19292056099,,87235891261#,,,,*817725# US (New York)  
In-person: Council Chambers, (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


          321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin   
           The meeting can also be live-streamed on https://wsto.tv/live and Spectrum              
           Channel 981 or on TDS Channel 12.  WSTO TV App is also available on Roku, Apple     
           TV, Fire TV, Android and iOS. 
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Frank Raff, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel 
Venegas 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS ARE NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 
(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the 
meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone at (608) 873-6677 or via email at 
cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
1.  Roll Call  
 
2.  Certification of compliance with open meetings law 
 
3.   Minutes and Reports:  
      Finance (1/10/23); Food Pantry (12/14/23); Personnel (10/3/23, 11/7/23); PFC (8/15/23, 8/24/23, 9/15/23, 


11/10/23, 12/14/23); Housing Authority (12/15/2022, 01/12/2023; 01/27/2023) 
       
4.   Public Comment Period: 


• If you would like to speak during the public comment period, please fill out the form and 
submit it by 6:30 p.m. on February 14, 2023. http://speak.cityofstoughton.com.  
 


5. Communications and Presentations: 
 


• Presentation by Forward Development Group – Concept Plan for Multi-family Project 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the 
time and location given below. 


  
  



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87235891261?pwd=a0U5a09ndzc2TFVKdXdIM1BaS3cwUT09

https://wsto.tv/live

mailto:cchristen@ci.stoughton.wi.us

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





 
 
6. Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes –2023 
       B. R-16-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to   
          various applicants.        
 
OLD BUSINESS  
 
7. O-02-2023 Amending Section 2-585 Hotel/Motel Tax of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code 
(Finance Committee recommends approval 6-0 on January 10, 2023)       SECOND READING  


______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
8. O-03-2023 Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code – Stormwater Basin 
Aesthetics (Public Works recommended approval 6-0 on January 19, 2023)   


          FIRST READING   


9. R-17-2023 Public Participation Plan to Amend the Comprehensive Plan   (Plan Commission item 
2/13/2023)                TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
 
10. R-18-2023 Approve cost reimbursement agreement – Stoughton Trailers Hwy 51 Development 
(Finance Committee considering February 14, 2023)            TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
 
11. R-19-2023 Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving City of 
Stoughton Park Design Guidelines (Parks & Rec. recommend approval 6-0 on 11/15/22) 


12. R-20-2023 Review and approve the financial agreement between the State of Wisconsin and the City 
of Stoughton for costs associated with the reconstruction of S. Fourth Street from Milwaukee Street to 
Isham Street scheduled to be constructed in 2025.  (Finance Committee considering February 14, 2023) 
         TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 
 
13. R-21-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Cigarette and Tobacco 
Products Retail License to Madtown Smoke Shop 2, Inc. located at 2501 Jackson St., Suite 200 (Public 
Safety recommends approval 5-0 on 1/25/23) 
 
14. R-22-2023  Resolution authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve a Class B 
Beer & Class C Wine License for Dairyland Desserts, LLC, Lara Romine, Owner/Agent, dba Dairyland 
Dessert Cafe, for the premises located at 176 E. Main Street (Public Safety recommends approval 5-0 on 
1/25/23) 
      
ADJOURNMENT 


 







Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677. 
By: Mayor Tim Swadley, Council President Regina Hirsch 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87235891261?pwd=a0U5a09ndzc2TFVKdXdIM1BaS3cwUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 872 3589 1261 
Passcode: 817725 
One tap mobile 
+19292056099,,87235891261#,,,,*817725# US (New York)  
+13017158592,,87235891261#,,,,*817725# US (Washington DC) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 305 224 1968 US 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 689 278 1000 US 
        +1 719 359 4580 US 
        +1 253 205 0468 US 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 360 209 5623 US 
        +1 386 347 5053 US 
        +1 507 473 4847 US 
        +1 564 217 2000 US 
        +1 669 444 9171 US 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
Meeting ID: 872 3589 1261 
Passcode: 817725 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcPDyCnzvz 
 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87235891261?pwd=a0U5a09ndzc2TFVKdXdIM1BaS3cwUT09

https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kcPDyCnzvz














Minutes of the Stoughton Food Pantry Board Meeting – Dec 14, 2022 


 


1.  The meeting was called to order at 3:10pm.   Present  Mike Heger, Linda Lane, Val Macho, Diane Williams   Absent 
Sandy Fleming  Quorum was established 


2. Approval of the minutes of the Oct. 19, 2022 Board Meeting – Motion to approve by L Lane and seconded by V 
Macho.  All approve 4-0 


3. Vaccination requirement for all volunteers.  Discussion centered on abolishing the required Covid vaccine for all 
volunteers.  After discussion L Lane made a motion to eliminate the requirement and V Macho seconded the motion .   
All approved the motion 4-0 


4 Revising the quantity of food and vouchers given to clients.   In an effort to make the distribution of food more equal 
on a per person basis numerous changes were agreed to. 


JELLY :      CURRENT:   (1-2)  2   (3-4)  2  (5+)  3    CHANGED TO:   (1-2)  1   (3-4)  2  (5+)  3 


PEANUT BUTTER:     CURRENT:   (1-2) 3   (3-4) 4   (5+)   5      CHANGED TO:   (1-2)  1   (3-4)  3  (5+)  5  


VEGETABLES:    CURRENT:  (1-2) 6   (3-4) 10   (5+) 12        CHANGED TO:  2 per person  


TUNA LARGE:     CURRENT:   (1-2)  1  (3-4)  1  (5-6)  2   (7+)  3        CHANGED TO:    (1-2)   1   (3-4)  2   (5+)  3 


CEREAL:   CURRENT:   (1-2)   3   (3-4)   4   (5-6) 5   (7+) 6           CHANGED TO:   1 per person 


FRUIT:   CURRENT:    (1-2)  5   (3-4)  6  (5-6)  7  (7+) 8                  CHANGED TO:    2 per person 


MAC  & CHEESE:   CURRENT:  (1-2)  4   (3-4)  5   (5-6)   6  (7+)7    CHANGED TO:    (1-2)  3   (3-4)   6   (5+)   9 


JUICE:   CURRENT:    (1-2)   1   (3-4)   1   (5+)  2    CHANGED TO:    (1-3)    1   (4+)    2    


CHEESE:    CURRENT:   1 per household    CHANGED TO:   (1-3)   1   (4+)    2     


SPAGHETTI SAUCE: (1-2)  2   (3-4)  3   (5-6)  4  (7+)5   CHANGED TO : (1-2) 1   (3-4)  2   (5-6)  3  (7+)4 


PRODUCE VOUCHERS  - CURRENT:  $15/ HOUSEHOLD       CHANGED TO: (1-3)    $15 HOUSEHOLD  4+ $30  


REGULAR VOUCHERS:    CURRENT:  (1-3)    $20   4+    $30  CHANGED TO: (1-3)       $20      4+ $40  


MEATS:   NO CHANGE IN QUNANTITY – HOWEVER LARGE MEATS (IE HAMS, PORK LOINS, TURKEY ) CAN COUNT AS 2 
OR 3 SELECTIONS.  MEATS GREATER THAN 5# WILL COUNT AS 2 SELECTIONS, GREATER THAN 10# COUNT AS 3 


All of the above changes will begin in January 


5.  Length of shifts, pantry hours and deliveries 


There was general surprise that the heavy load of visits in November has been much lighter in December.  Thus it as 
agreed to go back to the 10-12 and 12-2 shifts (arriving 15 minutes prior).  With the amount of food we are distributing 
it is very important that every volunteer helps in stocking the pantry when there are open times in the schedules.   We 
will review how to handle the 1st of each month’s Saturday shift and whether that should be expanded.  More research 
is needed before a decision is made. 







As for deliveries we will begin to offer deliveries every Wed beginning in January.   We will need to have 3 people able to 
do deliveries so that if there are vacations or other personal issues someone is able to do deliveries.  No client shall 
receive a deliver on successive Wednesday.  Additionally NEW clients seeking delivery will be asked for the reason for 
the delivery.  The purpose of delivery is to assist clients with physical issues to obtain groceries.  We do not have the 
staff to service more than that.  If they have a medical issue, they should also be asked if they have someone who could 
pick up the order.  If so they can simply make their selections over the phone and have that ready for pickup at the 
selected time.  Clients without transportation need to be asked if they can have someone pick up their order or drive 
them to the pantry.   Linda will provide a script to read regarding questioning if a new delivery client qualiifies   


6.  Working on a 501c3 for a Friends of the Stoughton Food Pantry.  – this is required to have a 501c3 act as our fiscal 
agent with Second Harvest.  Second Harvest has provided us with 4000 pounds of food.  Linda and Mike will begin 
working on our application so that the Stoughton Area Community Foundation does not need to act for us for very long. 


7 Other Business-   


 Mike made the board aware that we have received lots of eggs, milk, and chicken of all types from Second 
Harvest.  Many of those products will likely not continue to be available as many were a result of a large Dane County 
grant. 


 Mike will meet with the mayor and the head of the Stoughton Area Community Foundation on Dec 15.  They 
hope to come up with a simple way to reimburse the foundation for their costs.    


 Mike had a long phone conversation with Ruth Lawson from the Methodist Pantry.  We discussed the possibility 
of picking up some of the excess foods being donated to Second Harvest directly.  Methodist currently picks up from Aldi 
and 3 of the 4 Quick Trips in Stoughton.   Methodist pantry is willing to share these resources with us.  We will be 
looking into the possibility of picking up from the downtown Quick Trip on Main Street.  We will need someone to pick 
up this food and stock it into the pantry.   At this time it was felt we would not go into Aldi.  Mike will see if we have 
anyone interested in doing pickups from Quik Trip on Mon and Wed mornings 


Finally it was agreed that all changes to be implemented will take effect on Jan 1.  Thus on Jan 1 2023 we will be 
changing the quantities of food, vouchers, adding deliveries on the 2nd and 4th Wed, etc. 


8.  Adjourn - a motion was made by V Macho to adjourn the meeting at 5:000 pm.  Seconded by D Williams.  All were in 
favor. 


 







 
 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, October 3, 2022 @ 5:30 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Brett Schumacher, Greg Jenson, Mayor Swadley (ex-officio member), 
Director Gillingham 
Present remotely: at 5:45pm: Fred Hundt (Vice Chair) 
   
1. CALL TO ORDER:  


Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  
 


2. Approval of the minutes from Tuesday, August 16, 2022 
Motion to approve Schumacher, Jenson second, Approved 4-0 
 


3. Communications/Updates 
Director Gillingham stated that HR has been very busy recruiting & hiring as well benefit 
negotiations, all of the renewals for January 1, 2023 and keeping up with the day-to-day 
duties. She stated there was a lot of time put in to the budget & comp for Utilities and that 
Director Ehlinger, Mayor and here are working on the increases for the City employees. 
She stated that most people don’t realize what goes into recruiting, interviewing, hiring 
and onboarding but there a lot of steps that need to be accomplished before someone is 
actually working. She also talked about how a termination is a lengthy process with 
removing the employee from all of the benefits and the system. 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding eliminating physicals for office positions 
Director Gillingham stated that she has never had a prospective employee have a finding 
during their pre-employment physical and would like to eliminate the sedentary/office 
type positions from having to complete a physical in order to hire. She stated that the cost 
was $57 per physical and in 2021 there had been 65 of which 28 would be excluded 
under her recommendation. This would have saved $1596 in 2021. For 2022, so far there 
have been 51 physicals, of which 15 could have been eliminated saving the City $855 ytd. 
She stated it is her recommendation that physicals be done only for labor intensive or 
physical positions: 


• DPW (all except Admin) 
• All sworn Police 
• All EMS 
• None at Senior Center 
• None in HR 
• None at Library 


• Parks & Rec – Rec Supervisor & Youth 
CTR Manager 


• Finance none 
• Clerk none 
• Opera House none 


 
If approved, Director Gillingham would meet with each Department Head to finalize the list as 
she stated the Director’s for each Department are close to the positions and would have a 
better perspective.   
Chair Reeves stated that this makes sense. There was some discussion. 
Motion to approve recommendation to Council once list is finalized, Schumacher 2nd, Approved 
5-0 
 







5. Recruiting Update 
Director Gillingham stated that August – September has been very busy for HR with recruiting 
& hiring.  There has been an influx with the Utilities positions being approved.  There were 6 
open Utilities positions and altogether there were17 at one time including all other positions. 
She stated that there had been some promotions and position changes at Utilities due to the 
restructure. She stated that interviews had been held all day& evening last Monday & Tuesday 
and that offers had been made to several applicants.  She stated that our part time & full-time 
custodians and rec assistant had all quit and that interviews would be this week for all of those 
positions. 
 


6. Update & discussion regarding 2023 Budget 
Mayor Swadley gave the committee an update on the status of the budget.  He stated they 
(he & Director Gillingham) were meeting with Finance Director Ehlinger on Tuesday to go over 
what would likely be available for increases. Mayor Swadley stated that after the meeting 
they would be able to give Personnel an update if there is any funding for additional positions.  
At this time, they were confident that there was no extra funding.  If something changed, we 
would use the November Personnel meeting to hear from the Directors that requested 
additional personnel. There was some discussion regarding the pay for Council members. 
Some of the Personnel Committee members stated they were not in agreement with raises in 
Council member pay and hope that it will be taken off the table. 
 


7. Future Agenda Item 
Director Gillingham stated there are no additions to future agenda items at this time.  


 
• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  
 


8. Motion to adjourn Schumacher, second Jenson, Approved 5-0.  
Meeting adjourned 6:35pm 


 
 
Respectfully submitted 10/04/2022 by HR Generalist Skarda 







 
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, November 7, 2022, @ 5:30 pm 
Ed Malinowski Boardroom 
 
 
Present: Lisa Reeves (Chair), Fred Hundt (Vice Chair), Brett Schumacher, Greg Jenson, Mayor 
Swadley (ex-officio member), Director Gillingham 
   
1. CALL TO ORDER:  


Chair Reeves called the meeting to order at 5:30 pm.  
 


Director Gillingham asked if item numbers 6 & 7 could be moved to 1 and 2 in order that 
Chief Jenks & Director Montgomery would not have to wait. Chair Reeves said that would be 
fine. 
 
Alder Schumacher made a motion to close the meeting for items 6 and 7 reading “May 
move to closed session per State Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 
compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the 
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility”, Vice-Chair Hundt 2nd, All in 
Favor 4-0 
 
6. **Discussion and possible action regarding employee issue 


 
7. **Discussion and possible action regarding Police Union contract compensation 
 
Jenson motion to make a recommendation to take to Finance Committee to approve the 
extra $88,397 needed to come from identified funds and then to Council to make an 
amendment to the 2023 budget, second Hundt, All in Favor 4-0 
 
Alder Schumacher made a motion to come out of closed session, second Hundt, All in 
Favor 4-0 
 
2. Approval of the minutes from Monday, October 3, 2022 


Motion to approve Schumacher, Jenson second, Approved 4-0 
 


3. Communications/Updates 
Director Gillingham stated that HR had been busy with the following tasks: 


• Quartz -negotiated to 8.9% for 2023 
• Delta Dental – no increase for 2023 
• Section 325 increased to $3050 
• Open Enrollment November 14-28 
• Working on benefits handout & renewal process with Director Montgomery to 


better streamline the open enrollment process 
• WPPA Negotiations – held a meeting with Chief Jenks and the attorney 
• Working through an employee issue – more in closed session 
• Generalist Skarda & Admin Assistant Updike have moved into their new office and 


have been working on: agendas, minutes, recruiting, posting ads, orientations, 
interviews, schedule ng of background checks, pre-employment physicals & drug 
screens. As well as an I9 Project, the annual Flu Clinic, and annual hearing screens 







• Amanda did some research for TPA-DOT Testing – Meeting was held to determine 
the next steps. Director Gillingham working with Jen at the hospital to see if they 
can become in-network - $70 vs $40 cost 


• Flu Clinic 50 employees vaccinated 
• Hearing screens complete (2 with significant change) 
• Generalist Skarda has completed the benefits spreadsheet used for keeping track 


of changes. 
 


4. Discussion and possible action regarding January 2023 Personnel Meeting 
Director Gillingham stated that the January meeting falls on the New Year’s Day holiday 
for City employees therefore she would like to try to get a new date for it so it could be 
posted. There was some discussion and the date of Tuesday, January 17th was agreed 
upon.  


5. Discussion regarding 2023 Compensation 
Director Gillingham stated that the plan for 2023 compensation is to retain the employees 
that the City has by right sizing as many as possible. There will be no requests for additional 
employees in any department.  


 
8. Future Agenda Items 


Director Gillingham stated there are no additions or changes to future agenda items at this 
time.  


• Leadership Backup Plan  
• Accrued Sick Leave for Retiring Employee – Sworn Police and City Staff  
• Disciplinary Action & Compensation  


 
9. Motion to adjourn Schumacher, second Hundt, Approved 4-0. Meeting adjourned 7:05 pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted 11/08/2022 by HR Generalist Skarda 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday August 15, 2022  @ 5:30pm 
Stoughton Utilities – Ed Malinowski Room 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 
Members Present: Jon Lewis (President), Donna Olson (Vice-President), Martin Lamers, Amie 


Edgington, Peter Sveum 
 
Staff Present: HR Director AJ Gillingham 


 


1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 5:34 pm. 
 


 
2. Decision to follow the recommended process from Director Gillingham.  Determined 


Chief interview on September 15th expert panel same day but separate.  Other 
decision to interview police applicants on the 24th of august at 4:00 
 


3. PFC reviewed the complaint and body camera.  The decision was unanimous that 
Sargent Hoeper did fulfill his duty as an officer in the Citizen complaint. 
 


                 * Donna made the motion and Amie seconded it. All in favor  
                 *Jon said he would work with AJ as far as writing a letter to the complainant. 
 


 
4. Adjournment 


Motion to adjourn Lamers, second Sevum. All in favor. Adjourned at 
6:40pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Minutes submitted 05/26/22 by Director Gillingham 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday August 24, 2022  @ 4:00pm 
Stoughton Utilities – Ed Malinowski Room 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 
Members Present: Jon Lewis (President), Donna Olson (Vice-President), Martin Lamers, Amie 


Edgington,  
 
Staff Present: HR Director AJ Gillingham, Interim Police Chief Jenks, LT. Frisch 


 


1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 4:00 pm. 
 


 
2. Interview candidates for Police Officer Position 


    * Moved to close session under state statue 19.85 (1) (c). Motion made by J. Lewis, 
second A. Edgington  
    * Motion to come out of close- A. Edgington, second M. Lamers 
 
 


3. PFC discussed candidates, will move both candidates to interim Police Chief Jenks 
 


                  
 


4. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn D. Olson, second M. Lamers. All in favor. Adjourned at 
5:15pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Minutes submitted 05/26/22 by Director Gillingham 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday September 15, 2022 @ 4:00pm 
Stoughton Utilities – Ed Malinowski Room 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 
Members Present: Jon Lewis (President), Donna Olson (Vice-President) ZOOM, Martin 


Lamers, Amie Edgington,  
 
Staff Present: HR Director AJ Gillingham, Derek Westby (present for IT needs) 


 


1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 4:45 pm by President Lewis 
 


 
2. Interview candidates for Police Chief Position 


    * Moved to close session under state statue 19.85 (1) (c). Motion made by P. Sveum, 
second M. Lamers 
    * Commissioner Edgington was excused early due to a family emergency  
    * Motion to come out of close- P. Sveum, second M. Lamers 
 
 


3. Motion by Sveum to extend an offer of employment as the Chief of Police for the City 
of Stoughton to Daniel Jenks – 2nd by M. Lamers- all in favor 
 


                  
 


4. Adjournment 
Motion to adjourn President Lewis, second M. Lamers. All in favor. 
Adjourned at 8:50pm. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Minutes submitted 09/16/22 by Director Gillingham 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes        
Thursday, November 10, 2022 @ 6:00 pm 
Stoughton Utilities – Ed Malinowski Room 
600 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589  
 


Members Present:   Jon Lewis (President), Donna Olson (Vice-President), Martin Lamers, Peter 
Sveum,  


 


Staff Present:   HR Director Gillingham, Fire Chief Joshua Ripp, Police Chief Dan Jenks, 
Deputy Fire Chief Mark Miller, Fire Captain Paul Updike 


 
 


1. Call to Order 
Meeting called to order at 5:30 pm    


 
2. Approval of the minutes  


Motion placed by Commissioner Olson, 2nd by Commissioner Lamers. All in favor  
  


 
3. Chief Jenks- 3rd Quarter Report 


Reviewed report, trends, volume. Chief Jenks will condense reports and have a 
narrative. He will also have report to HR before the meeting and not have long graphs 
included  


         
4. Chief Jenks discussion regarding structure 


Joe Fitters- part time offer accepted 
Lt. Frisch Retirement- *Will post job for three internal applicants 
Department Overview  
 


5. Interviews for Volunteer Firefighter / Feedback from Chief Ripp, DC Miller, Captain 
Updike 
Matthew Miller, Bryce Bischel  
*Bryce gives more day time coverage. He is a flight risk due to being a paramedic 
*Matt- Strong Military background 
Chief Ripp likes both 
 


6. Chief Ripps 3rd Quarter Report 
*Status of volunteers having difficulties making it to meetings and trainings 
*Talked about trucks rolling out, not just first truck 
*Duty Crew Discussion 
*Chief Ripp will get job descriptions to Director Gillingham 


        







7. Commissioner Olson to go into close session – 2nd by Commissioner Lamers 
*Move both candidates to Chief Ripp 


             Motion to come out of closed session by Commissioner Lamers. 2nd by Commissioner 
Sveum. 


8. Adjournment – Motion made by Commissioner Lamers, 2nd Commissioner Sveum  
 
 
          


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minutes submitted 05/26/22 by Director Gillingham 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes        


Wednesday, December 14, 2022 @ 11:00 am 


Stoughton Fire Department – Training Room 


413 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI 53589  


 


Members Present:   Jon Lewis (President), Donna Olson (Vice-President), Martin Lamers,  


 


Staff Present:   HR/RM Director Gillingham, Chief Dan Jenks 


 


 


1. Call to Order 


Meeting called to order at 10:53am    


 


2. Approval of the minutes  


Motion placed by Commissioner Lamers, 2nd by Commissioner Lewis. All in favor.  


  


 


3. Move to closed session 


Motion placed by Commissioner Lamers, 2nd by Commissioner Olson. All in favor.  


          


4. Move out of closed session 


Motion placed by Commissioner Lamers, 2nd by Commissioner Olson. All in favor. 


 


5. Certify top three candidates to Chief Jenks 


Candidates to move forward: Brandon Hill, Carson Hoeper, Chad O’ Neil 


Motion placed by Commissioner Olson, 2nd by Commissioner Lamers. All in favor. 


 


6. Adjournment  


      Motion made by President Lewis, 2nd Commissioner Lamers. All in favor.   


 


 


          


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Minutes taken by and submitted 12/15/22 by Director Gillingham 

























		1 Finance Committee minutes (signed) 01-10-2023

		2 Minutes Stoughton Food Pantry December Board Meeting

		3 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 10-03-2022

		4 PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 11-07-2022 Corrected

		5 PFC Meeting Minutes 8-15-2022

		City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes

		Monday August 15, 2022  @ 5:30pm



		6 PFC Meeting Minutes 8-24-2022

		City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes

		Wednesday August 24, 2022  @ 4:00pm



		7 PFC Meeting Minutes 9-15-2022

		City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Meeting Minutes

		Thursday September 15, 2022 @ 4:00pm



		8 PFC Meeting Minutes 11-10-2022

		9 PFC Meeting Minutes 12-14-2022

		10 Housing Authority minutes (signed) 12-15-2022

		11 Housing Authority minutes (signed) 01-12-2023

		12 Housing Authority minutes (signed) 01-27-2023






 


Forward Development Group 


Moving Business Forward 
161 Horizon Drive, Suite 101A 


Verona, WI  53593  


Ph 608.848.9050 


Fax 608.848.9051  


forwarddevgroup.com 











•
•
•


o
o


•
•
•
•
•



















ParcePPaarrccrrr ee


Exhibit A | Project Location


0 200’


N


Jackson Street


Oak Opening Drive


Cromwell 


Court


US
H 


51


Kettle Park West 
Commercial Center


Proposed Project Site
CSM Lot 2


Existing Lot 15


Existing Lot 27


Proposed CSM Lot 1



















3 - Rezone from MR-10
(Multifamily - 10 dwelling
units per acre) to PD (32
-  dwelling units per acre)


9 - Rezone from PB to PD (32 -  dwelling units per acre)


9


CSM


PD Planned Development








 


Meetings of:    COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON   
Date//Time: Tuesday, January 24, 2023, 7:00 p.m. 
Location: The meeting of the Common Council will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  
 
Members: Mayor Tim Swadley, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Regina Hirsch, Fred Hundt, Greg Jenson, 
Jean Ligocki, Tom Majewski, Frank Raff, Lisa Reeves, Brett Schumacher, Joyce Tikalsky, and Rachel 
Venegas 


 
CALL TO ORDER  
Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Christen called roll and noted 11 alders present.  Raff was absent and excused. 
 
Minutes and Reports: The following minutes were entered into the records 
Finance Comm. (10/11/22, 10/25/22, 11/15/22, 12/13/22, 11/15/22); Landmarks (12/08/22);  
Plan Comm.(12/12/22); RDA (12/14/22); Tree Commission (12/14/22); Public Works (12/16/22) 


 
Public Comment Period: 
None  


 
Communications and Presentations: 


• Alder Heili provided information on the available Sustainability survey  
• Director Ehlinger provided information on the VITA Program available at the Stoughton Senior 


Center. 
• Senior Center Director McGlynn provided information regarding interruptions to home-delivered 


meals and how accommodations are being made to continue the service without ceasing the 
program 


• Mayor Swadley informed members that the online packet is in a new format and to provide 
feedback for future packets. 


• Stoughton Trailers Development Concept and Draft Public Participation Plan for Comprehensive 
Plan Amendment – representatives provided background details to the proposed plan they are 
working on with the City that will be moving through the approval processes. 


 
Consent Agenda: 


A.  Council Minutes – January 10, 2023 
       B. R-08-2023 Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue Operator licenses to   
          various applicants.  
 
Motion by Reeves, second by Schumacher to approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 11-0. 
       
OLD BUSINESS  
 


  
  







O-01-2023 Amending City Ordinance Chapter 2, Article II, Division 2, Sec. 2-67(a) of the Stoughton 
Municipal Code.  
 
Motion by Venegas, second by Reeves to approve O-01-2023 Amending City Ordinance Chapter 2, 
Article II, Division 2, Sec. 2-67(a) of the Stoughton Municipal Code. Motion carried 11-0. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
R-09-2023 Certified survey map to combine the parcels at Cummins Emission Solutions, 1801 and 1715 
US Highway 51-138 for a future warehouse addition.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Majewski to approve R-09-2023 Certified survey map to combine the 
parcels at Cummins Emission Solutions, 1801 and 1715 US Highway 51-138 for a future warehouse 
addition. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-10-2023 Conditional Use for an Indoor Commercial Entertainment Use (restaurant) at Black Cat 
Café, 183 W. Main Street.   


Motion by Caravello, second by Hirsch to approve R-10-2023 Conditional Use for an Indoor 
Commercial Entertainment Use (restaurant) at Black Cat Café, 183 W. Main Street. Motion carried 11-
0. 


R-11-2023 Amend 2022 adopted budget for Landmarks Commission. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-11-2023 Amend 2022 adopted budget for 
Landmarks Commission.  Motion carried 11-0. 


O-02-2023 Amending Section 2-585 Hotel/Motel Tax of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code. 


Schumacher read O-02-2023 Amending Section 2-585 Hotel/Motel Tax of the City of Stoughton 
Municipal Code as a first reading.  It will be back before council on February 14, 2023. 


R-12-2023 City of Stoughton mileage reimbursement rates indexed to IRS rates. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-12-2023 City of Stoughton mileage 
reimbursement rates indexed to IRS rates. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-13-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for city employee market adjustments. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-13-2023 Amend 2023 adopted budget for city 
employee market adjustments. Motion carried 11-0. 


R-14-2023 Approving cost reimbursement agreement – Stone Crest Development. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-14-2023 Approving cost reimbursement 
agreement – Stone Crest Development with the additions by Attorney Matt Dregne as stated by Director 
Scheel.  Motion carried 11-0. 







R-15-2023 Enter into an agreement with Parisi Construction, LLC for roadway improvements to Deer 
Point Drive and Oak Opening Drive. 


Motion by Schumacher, second by Jenson to approve R-15-2023 Enter into an agreement with Parisi 
Construction, LLC for roadway improvements to Deer Point Drive and Oak Opening Drive. Motion 
carried 11-0.      


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion by Jenson, second by Caravello to adjourn.  The motion carried 11-0, the meeting adjourned. 8:16 p.m. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


Candee Christen 
City Clerk 
 








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
Amending Section 2-585 Hotel/Motel Tax of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code;  


Committee Action:    Finance Committee recommended approval 6-0 on 01/10/2023  
Fiscal Impact:       Potential increase in delinquent penalties (amount unknown) 


Increased room tax revenue (amount unknown) 
File Number: O-02-2023 Date 


Introduced:        
First reading – January 24, 2023 
Second reading – February 14, 2023 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton has not revised the city ordinance for hotel/motel taxes since its 


adoption in November 2003; and, 


WHEREAS, the Director of Finance/Comptroller suggests the following changes to the ordinance: 
1) Update the ordinance language regarding the allocation of room tax revenue to be consistent with 


current practice, 
2) update the ordinance for consistency with hospitality industry practice regarding names on 


lodging invoices consistent with the USA Patriot Act of 2001, 
3) establish that any related forfeitures, interest, and penalties shall be reported within the General 


Fund, 
4) increase the forfeiture for late filing to be calculated on a quarterly basis as opposed to an annual 


basis due to the fact that these room taxes are collected on a fiduciary basis by the establishment,  
5) increase the room tax rate effective 07-01-2022;  


 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton as follows: 


 
Amend Section 2-585 Hotel/Motel Tax of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code as per the attached Exhibit A 
 


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


 
Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:             
       Timothy Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:              


        Candee Christen, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Exhibit A 
 


 
    Created: 2022‐10‐17 10:58:28 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 65) 


 
Page 1 of 4 


Sec. 2-585 Hotel/motel room tax. 


(a) Definitions. In this section, the following definitions shall apply:  


Bed and breakfast establishment. Any place of temporary lodging that provides four or fewer 
rooms for rent, which is open for rental more than ten nights in a 12-month period, is the owner's 
personal residence and is occupied by the owner at the time of rental, and in which the only meal 
served is breakfast.  


Gross receipts. Has the meaning as defined in Wis. Stats. § 77.51(4)(a) insofar as applicable.  


Hotel or motel. A building or group of buildings in which the public may obtain accommodations for 
a consideration, including, without limitation, such establishments as inns, motels, tourist homes, tourist 
houses or courts, bed and breakfast establishments, lodging houses, rooming houses, summer camps, 
apartment hotels, resort lodges and cabins and any other building or group of buildings in which 
accommodations are available to the public, except accommodations rented for a continuous period of 
more than one month and accommodations furnished by any hospital, sanatorium or nursing home or 
by corporations or associations organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable or 
educational purposes provided that no part of the net earnings of such corporations and associations 
inures to the benefit of any private share- holder or individual.  


Transient. Any person residing for a continuous period of less than one month in a hotel, motel or 
other furnished accommodation available to the public.  


(b) Imposition of tax. 


(1) Pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 66.0615, a tax is hereby imposed on the privilege and services of 
furnishing, at retail, rooms or lodging to transients by hotelkeepers, motel operators and 
other persons furnishing accommodations that are available to the public, irrespective of 
whether membership is required for the use of the accommodations. Effective June 1, 2023, 
such Such tax shall be at increase from the prior rate of six percent to eight percent (8%) of 
the gross receipts from such retail furnishing of rooms or lodgings. Such tax shall not be 
subject to the selective sales tax imposed by Wis. Stats. 77.52(2)(a)1.  


Effective January 1, 2004, Ten (10) 30 percent of such tax shall be appropriated to the City’s 
General Fund for purposes of promoting economic development. Ninety (90) Seventy percent 
of such tax shall be deposited in the city tourism fund to be used exclusively for the purpose 
of tourism promotion and development in the City of Stoughton. The City shall use room tax 
revenue deposited within the City’s tourism fund to contract with a tourism entity or tourism 
entities to provide tourism promotion and development services for the City.  


(2) Exemptions. The following room sales are exempt from this tax:  


a. Sales to the federal government;  


b. Sales to persons listed under Wis. Stats. § 77.54(9a).  


(3) Exemption conditions. The following conditions must occur for a sale to be exempt from the 
room tax:  







Exhibit A 
 


 
    Created: 2022‐10‐17 10:58:28 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 65) 


 
Page 2 of 4 


a. The lodging establishment must issue the billing or invoice for the lodging in the name of 
the exempt entity and/or the guest’s name in compliance of the USA Patriot Act of 2001 
(Public Law 107-56 October 26, 2001); and  


b. The lodging establishment must receive from the exempt entity:  


1. In the case of federal and Wisconsin state or local governmental units, a purchase 
order or similar written document (such as a letter of authorization), or  


2. In the case of nonprofit religious, charitable, scientific or educational organization, 
the organization's certificate of exempt status number.  


c. The exemption still applies if the individual pays with his or her own funds, as long as the 
above conditions are met.  


(c) Collection of tax. 


(1) Administration by city treasurer. This tax shall be administered by the city treasurer who shall, 
at city expense, provide the necessary application and reporting forms at no cost to the 
taxpayer.  


(2) Reporting periods. The tax imposed for the months of January, February and March, and for 
each calendar quarter thereafter, is due and payable on the last day of the month next 
succeeding the calendar quarter for which imposed. A return shall be filed with the city 
treasurer, by those furnishing at retail such rooms and lodging, on or before the same date on 
which such tax is due and payable. Such returns shall show the gross receipts of the preceding 
calendar quarter from such retail furnishing of room or lodging, the amount of taxes imposed 
for such period, and such other information as the city treasurer deems necessary. Every 
person required to file such quarterly return shall, with his first return, elect to file an annual 
calendar year or fiscal year return. Such annual return shall be filed within 90 days of the 
close of each such calendar or fiscal year. The annual return shall summarize the quarterly 
returns, reconcile and adjust for errors in the quarterly returns, and shall contain certain such 
additional information as the city treasurer requires. Such annual returns shall be made on 
forms as prescribed by the city treasurer. All such returns shall be signed by the person 
required to file a return or duly authorized agent, but need not be verified by oath. The city 
treasurer may, for good cause, extend the time for filing any return, but in no event longer 
than one month from the filing date.  


(3) Sale or conveyance of business. If any person liable for any amount of tax under this section 
sells out his business or stock of goods or quits the business, his successors or assigns shall 
withhold sufficient portion of the purchase price to cover such amount until the former 
owner produces a receipt from the city treasurer that it has been paid or a certificate stating 
that no amount is due. If a person subject to the tax imposed by this section fails to withhold 
such amount of tax from the purchase price as required, he shall become personally liable for 
payment of the amount required to be withheld by him to the extent of the price of the 
accommodations valued in money.  


(4) Determination of tax by audit. 







Exhibit A 
 


 
    Created: 2022‐10‐17 10:58:28 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 65) 


 
Page 3 of 4 


a. The city treasurer may, by office audit, determine the tax required to be paid to the city 
or the refund due to any person under this section. This determination may be made 
upon the basis of the facts contained in the return being audited or on the basis of any 
other information within the city treasurer's possession that meets the criteria set forth 
in Wis. Stats. § 66.0615(2). One or more such office audit determination may be made of 
the amount due for any one or for more than one period.  


b. The city treasurer may, by field audit, determine the tax required to be paid to the city 
or the refund due to any person under this section. The determination may be made 
upon the basis of the facts contained in the return being audited or upon any other 
information with the city treasurer's possession. The city treasurer is authorized to 
examine and inspect the books, records, memoranda, and property of any person in 
order to verify the tax liability of that person or of another person. Nothing herein shall 
prevent the city treasurer from making a determination of tax at any time.  


(5) Failure to file return. If any person fails to file a return as required by this section, the city 
treasurer shall make an estimate of the amount of the gross receipts under subsections (2) 
and (3). Such estimates shall be made for the period for which such person failed to make a 
return and shall be based upon any information which is in the city treasurer's possession or 
may come into the treasurer's possession. On the basis of this estimate, the city treasurer 
shall compute and determine the amount required to be paid to the city, adding to the sum 
thus arrived at a penalty equal to ten percent thereof. One or more such determinations may 
be made for one or more than one period. Any penalty assessed shall be placed in the City’s 
General Fund. 


(6) Interest on unpaid taxes. All unpaid taxes under this section shall bear interest at the rate of 
12 percent per year from the due date of the return until the first day of the month following 
the month in which the tax is paid or deposited with the city treasurer. An extension of time 
within which to file a return shall operate to extend the due date of the return for purposes 
of interest computations. If the city treasurer determines that any overpayment of tax has 
been made intentionally or by reason of carelessness or neglect, or if the tax which was 
overpaid was not accompanied by a complete return, he shall not allow any interest thereon. 
Any interest assessed on unpaid taxes shall be placed in the City’s General Fund. 


(7) Delinquent returns and payments: Late fees and penalties. 


a. The tax imposed by this section shall become delinquent if not paid:  


1. In the case of a timely filed return, within 30 days after the due date of the return, 
or within 30 days after the expiration of an extension period, if one is granted.  


2. In the case of no return being filed or a return filed late, by the due date of the 
return.  


b. Any person or establishment failing to pay the tax imposed by this section when due 
shall be subject to a forfeiture not to exceed $5,000 or 25% of the room tax due for the 
delinquent calendar quarter previous year, whichever is less. Any forfeiture assessed on 
delinquent returns and penalties shall be placed in the City’s General Fund. 







Exhibit A 
 


 
    Created: 2022‐10‐17 10:58:28 [EST] 


(Supp. No. 65) 


 
Page 4 of 4 


c. Any person or establishment subject to this section that fails to file a correct return 
when due shall be subject to a forfeiture of $100.00.  


(d) Records to be maintained. Every person liable for the tax imposed by this section shall keep or 
cause to be kept such records, receipts, invoices and other pertinent papers in such form as the 
city treasurer and this section shall require. Such records shall be retained and made available for a 
period of five years from the date of a filing period.  


(e) Confidentiality maintained. 


(1) All tax returns, schedules, exhibits, writings, or audit reports relating to such returns on file 
with the city treasurer are deemed to be confidential, except the city treasurer may divulge 
their contents to the following and no others:  


a. The person who filed the return.  


b. Officers, agents or employees of the Federal Internal Revenue Service or the State 
Department of Revenue.  


c. Officers, employees or agents of the city auditors.  


d. Such other public officials of the City of Stoughton when deemed necessary to discharge 
the duties of their office imposed by law or by order of a court.  


(2) No person having an administrative duty under this section shall make known in any manner 
the business affairs, operations or information obtained by an investigation of records of any 
person on whom a tax is imposed by this section or the amount or source of income, profits, 
losses, expenditures or any particulars thereof, set forth or disclosed in any return, or to 
permit any return or copy thereof to be seen or examined by any person, except as provided 
above. Any person who violates this subsection shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than 
$100.00 nor more than $500.00. Any forfeiture pursuant to this section shall be placed in the 
City’s General Fund. 


(f) Other penalties. Any person or establishment subject to this section that fails or refuses to permit 
the inspection of records by the city treasurer after such inspection has been duly required by such 
treasurer, or that violates any other provision of this section not containing a specific penalty, shall 
be subject to a forfeiture pursuant to section 1-3. Each day, or portion thereof, that such violation 
continues is hereby deemed to constitute a separate offense. Any forfeitures pursuant to this 
section shall be placed in the City’s General Fund. 


(Ord. No. 0-50-03, § 1, 11-25-2003) 


Amended – Ord. No. O-xx-2023, 01-24-2023 


 


 





		10. O-02-2023 Amend municipal code Section 2-585 Hotel-Motel tax

		10a. 3W81473-Hotel-Motel Room Tax Ordinance Amendment - Eight percent option






T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\02-14-2023\08 O-03-2023 Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023 - PW Action.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee 
Action:    


Public Works Committee recommends approval  6 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -03- 2023 Date Introduced:  February 14, 2023 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


Sec. 66-904. - Range of required improvements.  
 


 (8) Stormwater drainage facilities. Whenever in the opinion of the director of planning and development 
upon consultation with the city contract engineer there is within reasonable distance a storm sewer 
main, the subdivision or planned unit development shall be provided with a complete stormwater 
management system which shall connect with such main. If the subdivision or planned unit 
development is traversed by any watercourse or channel, stream or creek, either live or dry, the 
subdivider shall dedicate a right-of-way for storm drainage purposes conforming substantially with 
the lines of such natural watercourse or channel, stream or creek or, at the developer's option, 
subject to the approval of the plan commission and the public works committee, provide adequate 
storm drains or other means for the handling of storm flow from and through his property and 
including the conveyance thereof. In general, the entire stormwater management systems and the 
disposal of stormwater shall be planned and built to meet the approval of the director of planning 
and development upon consultation with the city contract engineer.  


Aesthetics shall be taken into consideration in the design of stormwater detention basins.  
Basins shall be designed to appear as a naturally formed body of water with irregular and 
imperfect flowing shoreline with curving appearance and no angular or geometric shapes. (For 
example, no perfectly symmetrical circles, ovals, rectangles or squares.)  Curvilinear rather than 
rectangular shaped basins shall be used wherever possible. Exposed rip-rap shall be kept to a 
minimum. More extensive areas of rip-rap should be covered with a thin layer of topsoil, turf 
reinforcement, and sod or be covered by water. Fieldstone shall be used for rip-rap wherever 
possible to provide a more natural appearance. Structures shall be flush with the ground surface 
whenever possible. Outlet control structures shall be designed to blend into the side slopes of the 
basin rather than being exposed in the bottom of the basin.  A landscaping plan with a minimum of 
one tree or substantial bush cluster per detention basin side or per 100 feet of the perimeter, 
whichever provides more plantings, is required. A minimum of 10 feet of level surface between 
the top of the detention basin slope and adjacent properties is desired. 
 
The subdivider shall, at its own cost, construct curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm 
sewers, road ditches and open channel drainageways as may be required by the city. All such 
facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate maximum potential 
volumes of flow; the type of facility required, the design criteria and the sizes and grades to be 
determined, to present no hazard to life or property; and the size, type and installation of all 
stormwater drains and wastewater or sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed, shall be in 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2023 PACKETS\02-14-2023\08 O-03-2023 Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023 - PW Action.docx 
 


accordance with the stormwater management plan and the plans and standards specifications 
approved by the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city contract 
engineer. Curb and gutter installation may be delayed pursuant to subsection (4). Where such 
installations are delayed, the stormwater to be conveyed by the curb and gutter management 
system shall be maintained by the city at the expense of the developer.  
 


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
      Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


       Candee Christen, City Clerk 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 


 
 
Date:  December 12, 2022 
 
To:  Public Works Committee  
 
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
Subject: Public Stormwater Pond Aesthetics 
 
In 2021, the City amended our ordinance to provide additional guidance regarding aesthetics for 
public stormwater basins.  I have attached the materials associated with that action.  This year, 
the City received Preliminary Plat materials for Magnolia Springs located at the south end of 
Page Street.  The developer’s designers provided their stormwater management layout along 
with anticipated contour lines for the development.  The Plan Commission determined the 
proposed stormwater management ponds are not acceptable under the City Ordinance 66-904(8) 
and recommended that the plat be conditionally approved with this additional condition:  
 


Before the City will sign a Final Plat, the proposed stormwater management basin for 
Outlot 2 is to be modified to comply with the aesthetic, curvilinear, expectations of 
City Ord. 66-904(8) to the satisfaction of the City. 


 
The development team made their submittal (with knowledge of our ordinance requirements) and 
the process allowed for the City to evaluate their proposal through the Plan Commission and 
ultimately the Common Council. 
 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works 12-12-2022 - Stormwater Pond Design.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





87
0


87
0


87
0


87
0


87
0


87
0870


875


880


869869871


87
1


87
1872872


872
873
874


876
877
878
879


865


870


875


88
0


88
5


866867868869


871872873874
876


87
7


877877


87
8


878878


87
9


88
1


88
2


88
3


88
4


86
587087
5


88
0885 86
6867


868


869


871


872


87387
4


87
6


87
7


87
8


87
9


88
1


88
2883884


85586
0


865


86
5 85285385485


6
85


7
85


8
85


9


86
1


86
2


863


86
3


864


86
4


866


866


860


865


861
862


863
864


866


867


867


87
5


87
3


87
4


87687787
7


877
878


870


868


869


865865


865


864
864864


866866


866


867
868


867
864


86
8


878


863


856


87
0


866
86587


0


87
5


86
4864 86
4


86
486686
7


86
8


86
9


87
1872


873874


876 87
6


86586
4


86486
4


86
6


86
6 867867865 86587


0


87
5


866 86
6


86786
8


86
9


87
187
287


387
4


86
4


85
5


86
5


865


862


863


864


86
6


866


865


862


863
864


865
86386


3


865


864


866


866


867


867


868


868


865


844
847


843
849


854


84
385


0
85


3


86
4


86
3


86
8


863
868


85
686


086
586


8


859
864


868


859
864


868


85
9


86
4 86


9


86
0870 86
7


86
8868


868 86
9869


869 86
3


C67


34.85'


S 66°10'23" E
128.47'


34.64'


S 89°59'58" E 790.06'


S 89°59'58" E 525.20'
S 89°59'58" E


172.75'


S 30°21'26" E
407.34'


S 59°16'57" W
247.92'


S 
00


°1
0'


56
" W


47
7.


25
'


S 89°50'45" W 1072.96'


N
 0


0°
33


'2
6"


 W
25


5.
01


'


S 89°50'45" W 255.47'


N
 0


0°
08


'0
5"


 E
89


9.
00


'


S 80°54'48" W
137.97'


L1 L2


C1


S 90°00'00" W
91.92'


N
 0


0°
12


'5
8"


 E
10


2.
12


'


N 89°56'53" W 236.15'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
89


.7
2'


N 89°52'13" E 489.88'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 W
11


8.
41


'


11
8.


21
'


11
8.


00
'


S 
03


°1
0'


58
" W


12
1.


61
'


S 
08


°4
7'


54
" W


13
5.


34
'


S 
09


°4
3'


04
" W


15
9.


89
'


86.54'66.00'66.00'


52.36' 68.84' 73.73'76.40' 66.00' 66.00' 86.55'


20
7.


06
'


N 59°07'16" E
191.67'


N 68°03'44" E
146.30'


S 89°59'54" E
117.16'


N 90°00'00" E
106.87'


105.86'


80
.0


0'
66


.0
0'


66
.0


0'
11


1.
90


'
10


0.
97


'


C9


C10


65
.9


4'
36


.1
8'


C
11


C
12


C
13


C14


C15


C16


C17
C18 C19


N 90°00'00" E
92.11'


60
.0


1'
39


.3
4'


14
7.


25
'


10
1.


61
'


11
5.


40
'


S 89°47'05" E
106.22'


S 84°36'30" E
125.52'


N 85°52'51" W
141.05'


L5


L6


L3


L4


N
 0


0°
12


'5
8"


 E
12


7.
09


'


S 89°55'58" E 549.73'


N
 0


0°
00


'4
8"


 E
89


.6
1'


10
1.


06
'


44.62' 100.00' 100.00' 100.00' 100.00' 105.11'


C
7


C6


C5
C4


63.02'100.00'100.00'100.00'100.00'105.00'


S 
00


°0
4'


02
" W


10
3.


39
'


S 
00


°0
4'


02
" W


10
3.


39
'


10
3.


39
'


10
3.


39
'


10
3.


39
'


C8


C2


C3


C20


31
.5


0'


S 90°00'00" W 239.67'
C79


C80


C81


C78


N
 0


0°
11


'0
2"


 E
63


.0
0'


N 90°00'00" E 239.09'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


17
4.


00
'


N 90°00'00" E
81.45'


11.43'
66.00'66.00'96.24'


66.00' 66.00'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


28
'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


72
'


66.00'66.00'96.04'


88
.5


0'
85


.5
0'


C
51


N
 0


4°
51


'1
3"


 W
12


7.
75


'


C52 N 90°00'00" W 299.66' C53


N 74°54'21" W 248.62'
C54


L25


N 90°00'00" E
100.00'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


13
2.


00
'


L2
3


L24


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
11


0.
00


'


71
.9


0'
L2


2
55


.8
5'


66
.0


0'
49


.6
3'


N
 0


0°
00


'5
6"


 E
13


3.
86


'


100.35'


110.99'
101.01'


66
.0


0'
66


.0
0'


459.20'


C49


S 
04


°5
1'


13
" E


12
7.


75
'


C
50


C46N 90°00'00" W 608.45'


C47


N
 0


0°
12


'5
8"


 E
12


6.
76


'
C48 47.06' 90.00' 90.12' 322.01'


64.54' 66.00' 66.00' 66.00' 66.00' 279.91'


N 90°00'00" W
107.33'


N 90°00'00" W
90.00'


90.00'
66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'78.21'
54.88'


S 89°55'58" E 549.19'


S 
00


°0
4'


02
" W


99
.8


8'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
09


'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
99


.9
8'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
50


'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


10
0.


50
'


10
0.


50
'


10
0.


50
'


10
0.


50
'


C41 N 90°00'00" W 593.85' C42


L1
9


C
43


L2
0


C34N 90°00'00" E 418.72'
C35


L18C39


C
40


S 
00


°1
2'


58
" W


10
2.


46
'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
00


'


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


0.
00


'
S 


00
°0


4'
01


" W
10


0.
00


'


S 
00


°0
4'


01
" W


11
4.


15
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


38
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


10
0.


00
'


126.16'67.00'68.03'66.00'66.00'66.00'69.00'64.70'


N 90°00'00" E
118.51'


82.99'
N 90°00'00" E


79.99'
69.00' 66.00' 66.00' 66.00' 68.03' 67.00' 115.48'


66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'


C
45


C
44


101.84'66.00'66.00'66.00'66.00'52.88'
C38


C37
C36


16.41'


86
.0


5'


C21


C2
9 L13


C30 N 90°00'00" W 418.72' C33


N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
17


4.
92


'


C22S 89°56'53" E 236.07'


C23


C31
C32


114.68' 67.83' 68.19' 70.00' 98.02'


86
.0


0'
88


.9
2'


98.01'70.00'68.06'
C28


C27


C26


C25


C24


N 89°48'21" E
112.03'


66.00' 70.02' 70.00'
57.50'


70.97'
L1


4


L1
5


L1
6


L1
7


L7L8L9L1
0


L1
1


L1
2


C6434.28'


L26


C55


N 74°54'21" W 248.62'


C58N 90°00'00" W 265.11'
L27


180.07'


S 
09


°1
8'


35
" E


89
.7


5'


N
 0


1°
30


'1
9"


 E
14


5.
93


'


C56
C57


118.65'


19.32'


1.65'


43.62'


90.28'


100.57'


S 55°08'46" E
113.62'


N
 1


5°
05


'3
9"


 E
11


1.
37


'


N
 1


4°
22


'4
0"


 E
10


1.
54


'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.4


0'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.2


7'


110.00' 41.83'


N 89°55'25" W
100.00'


118.89'
84.89' 67.00' 67.00'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


10
0.


78
'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


10
0.


60
'


10
0.


68
'


N
 1


4°
22


'4
0"


 E
99


.3
1'


N 
34


°2
4'3


2"
 E


11
2.


99
'


N 57°49'25" E


148.52'


S 89°49'03" E
118.67'


S 89°49'03" E
98.31'


118.64'


71.39' 67.00' 67.00'
C66


C
68


12
6.


79
'


65
.0


0'
70


.0
0'


16
7.


46
'


57
.1


8'


5.82'


C71


C7
2


C73
C74 S 44°24'08" E


163.15'N
 0


0°
00


'0
0"


 E
10


1.
15


'


11
7.


65
'


11
7.


65
'


72.71'105.00'100.50'


100.00' 110.00'105.00'


17.61'


37
.0


9'


12
'


6'
12'


12
'


6'


12'


12'


113.28'


89.84' 209.82'


N 89°50'45" E 1590.09' N 89°49'05" W
82.63'


N 89°49'05" W 2657.92'
412.77'


31.50'


138.11'


33'R = 819.20'
A = 186.45'


Δ = 13°02'25"
CHB = S23° 50' 14"E


CHL = 186.04'


291.26'


66.00'
50.28'


171.85'


258.55'1331.54'


40
.3


0'
86


.4
6'


26
.0


3'


C
61


C
60


L2
1


66.00'


100.02'
18.23'


29.29'


48
.0


0'


L30
S 89°57'14" E 568.02'


S 84°38'15" E
78.93'


S 69°06'21" E


97.30'


C65


15.00'


10
1.


85
'


99
.1


0'


6.00'


10
1.


72
'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


72
'


11.46'


10
1.


28
'


S 
00


°0
3'


50
" W


10
1.


28
'


L28
C


59


L2
9


C62 N 90°00'00" E 239.67'


C63


L3
0


L3
1


C69


C70C75N 90°00'00" W 278.21'


C76
S 


00
°0


0'
00


" E
89


.6
5'


C77


7.82'


S 90°00'00" E
110.65'Yahara


R.


N


Stoughton
7 8


1718


LINE TABLE


LINE


L1


L2


L3


L4


L5


L6


L7


L8


L9


L10


L11


BEARING


S00°37'54"W


N00°24'48"W


S00°04'02"W


S22°27'42"E


S00°04'02"W


S22°27'42"E


S00°00'00"E


S00°00'00"E


S01°02'09"W


S05°47'21"W


S26°09'12"W


LENGTH


40.00'


20.00'


63.88'


50.58'


58.86'


57.06'


102.45'


102.15'


101.85'


93.25'


93.93'


LINE


L12


L13


L14


L15


L16


L17


L18


L19


L20


L21


L22


BEARING


S35°53'13"W


S64°46'21"W


S00°00'00"E


S01°02'09"W


S00°00'00"E


S00°00'00"E


N64°46'21"E


N20°04'42"E


N00°00'00"E


S03°21'13"E


N02°29'16"W


LENGTH


78.83'


29.51'


101.08'


100.87'


100.63'


100.39'


30.77'


30.97'


47.82'


20.79'


24.99'


LINE


L23


L24


L25


L26


L27


L28


L29


L30


L31


BEARING


N05°13'02"W


N90°00'00"E


S58°51'18"W


S58°51'18"W


S57°16'41"W


S20°04'42"E


S00°00'00"E


S00°11'02"W


S00°00'00"E


LENGTH


66.25'


9.98'


13.17'


12.26'


38.12'


29.06'


47.82'


63.00'


37.11'


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


PRELIMNARY PLAT OF
MAGNOLIA SPRINGS


PART OF THE SE1/4 OF THE SW1/4 AND THE SW1/4 OF
THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 11


EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.


SECTION CORNER MONUMENTED


FOUND 3/4" IRON REBAR


SET 1 1/4" BY 24" IRON REBAR
WEIGHING 4.30 LBS./FT.


FOUND 1" IRON PIPE


FOUND 1.5" IRON PIPE


SHEET 1 OF 2
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


ALL OTHER   AND OUT  CORNERS
ARE 3/4" X 24" IRON REBAR
WEIGHING 1.50 LBS./FT.


VICINITY MAP


SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY


LOT LINE/RIGHT-OF-WAY


EASEMENT LINE


SECTION / 14 SECTION LINE


CENTERLINE


PREVIOUS SURVEY


FOUND MAG NAIL


PLAT LOCATION


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


0 100 200


123


666768


69 70 71 72


73


74


75


76


77


78


79808182
222120191817


16


15


14


13


12


11


10


9


8


7


6 5 4


40


64
63


59


60


61


62


585756


55 54 53 52 51


5049484746454443


42
41


65


39 38 37 36 35


34333231
30


29


28
27


26 25 24 23 83 84 85 86


8788


OUTLOT  1


OUTLOT  2


33.00'


14.95'


10.52'


OUTLOT
4


SURVEYOR:
BRADLEY TISDALE, PLS
MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC.
1702 PANKRATZ STREET
MADISON, WI 53704


ENGINEER:
MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC.
1702 PANKRATZ STREET
MADISON, WI 53704


CURRENT OWNER AND SUBDIVIDER:
ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT LLC
2364 JACKSON ST. UNIT 265
STOUGHTON, WI 53589


PROPOSED ZONING:
LOTS 1-9, 23, 34-35, 50, 56-58, 62-68, 80-83
TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 6 (TR-6)


LOTS 10-22, 73-79
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 5 (SR-5)


LOTS 24-33, 36-49, 51-55, 59-61, 69-72, 84-90
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL - 6 (SR-6)


OUTLOTS 1-4
INSTITUTIONAL (I)


CITY OF STOUGHTON EXISTING ZONING:
RURAL HOLDING (RH)


OUTLOT  3


D
ED


IC
AT


ED
 T


O
 T


H
E 


PU
BL


IC


DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC


DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC
PARKER COLE ADDITION


LOT 1LOT 2LOT 3LOT 4LOT 5LOT 6LOT 7
CSM 8119


LOT 2
CSM 8119


LOT 3
CSM 8118


LOT 1 LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4


66'


66'


66'


66
'


66
'


66'


81
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


33
'


48
'


48
'


81
'


KAREN M GERMANN
301 ISHAM ST


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(TR-6)


ROB REAL
ESTATE


(SR-6)
(TR-6)


(TR-6) (TR-6) (TR-6) (TR-6)
KAREN &


ROBIN
DROGSVOLD
225 ISHAM ST


KAREN
DROGSVOLD
217 ISHAM ST


ROB REAL
ESTATE


201 ISHAM ST


SHERRY
LEICK


125 ISHAM ST


SHERRY
LEICK


101 ISHAM ST


ANITA C
HALVERSON


1308 S
FOURTH ST


MICHAEL P
KURTINITIS


1073 TAYLOR LN


ARLIN O TIEGEN
1069 TAYLOR LN


CSM 15888


LOT 1


(TR-6)


(RR-1)


(RR-4)


(SFR-1)


KENDALL L
GULSETH


2834 AAKER RD


KENT J
KLONGLAND


LIVING TRUST
2840 AAKER RD


CSM 11716


LOT 1
(RR-4)


TIMOTHY & SCOTT
KLONGLAND
889 STH 138


STOUGHTON, WI
53589


CSM 4722


LOT 2
(AT-35)


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


30
'


60
'


60
'


60
'


60
'


30
'


30
' WIDTH


VARIES


30
'


30
'


60
'


30'30'
60'


33'33'


33'33'


DEDICATED FOR
STORMWATER
PURPOSES


DEDICATED
FOR TRAIL


DEDICATED FOR
PARK AND
STORMWATER
PURPOSES


12
'


12
'


12'


12'


12'


12'


12'


12'


12'


SEE DETAIL A
ON PG 2 OF 2


FOR EASEMENT
DETAILS


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


EXISTING RW LINE


PROPOSED RW
LINE


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12'
6'


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12'


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


12
'


6' 6'


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT


60
'


SOUTH LINE
SW1/4 SEC 8


SW CORNER
SEC 8 S1/4 CORNER SEC 8


SE CORNER
SEC 8


2245.15'


89


66'


66
'


33
'


33
'


EX. SAN MH
INV = 854.6'


33.00'


SW-SW


SE-SW


SW-SE


151'


12
'


15' STORM WATER
EASEMENT


30
'


30
'


60
'


15'


OUTLOT  5


12' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT 12


' 12
'


90


WIDTH
VARIES


7.5'


7.5'


15
'


7.
5'


7.
5'


NOTE:
OUTLOT 4 IS DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC


OUTLOT 5 IS DEDICATED FOR
STORMWATER AND SIDEWALK PURPOSES


12
'


6'



AutoCAD SHX Text

RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SAM  MILES



AutoCAD SHX Text

 AAKER



AutoCAD SHX Text

RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

BASS  LK     RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

SYMBOL LEGEND



AutoCAD SHX Text

AAKER RD



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAYLOR LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

S PAGE ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

S PAGE ST



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOVER LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORCHID AVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILLOW WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DAHLIA DR



AutoCAD SHX Text

ORCHID AVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DAHLIA DR



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILLOW WAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DAHLIA DR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOVER LN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ISHAM ST



RJScheel

Text Box

Exhibit A







87
0


87
0


87
0


87
0


87
0


863 864


865865


865


864


864864


866866


866


867


868


86
8


865


864


866


867


867


868


868


86
3


86
8


85
6


86
0


86
5


86
8


17.42'


S 57°16'41" W
90.41'


C
51


N
 0


4°
51


'1
3"


 W
12


7.
75


'


C52


N 90°00'00" W 299.66'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


13
2.


00
'


L2
3


L24


71
.9


0'
L2


2
55


.8
5'


66
.0


0'
N


 0
0°


00
'5


6"
 E


100.35'


110.99'
101.01'


56.78'


66
.0


0'
66


.0
0'


130.94'


12
7.


75
'


C
50


N 90°00'00" W 265.11'


L27


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.4


0'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


99
.2


7'


81.83'


37
.0


9'


78.88'32.12'


31.45'


S 57°16'41" W38.18'


S 57°16'41" W
145.61'


S 32°43'19" E
60.00'


N 57°16'41" E


68.39'


S 
00


°0
0'


00
" E


89
.3


6'
20


.6
4'


100.02'


18.23'


6.00'


L28


Curve Table


CURVE


C2


C3


C4


C5


C6


C7


C8


C9


C10


C11


C12


C13


C14


C15


C16


C17


C18


C19


C20


C21


C22


C23


C24


C25


C26


C27


C28


C29


C30


C31


LENGTH


22.00'


188.28'


41.84'


25.09'


53.56'


67.80'


21.94'


22.04'


637.33'


29.84'


66.85'


60.14'


64.05'


141.62'


94.70'


66.96'


63.69'


49.47'


21.98'


21.96'


22.00'


338.77'


84.63'


85.51'


90.60'


74.24'


3.80'


24.06'


74.11'


71.27'


RADIUS


14.00'


120.06'


120.06'


120.06'


120.06'


120.06'


14.00'


14.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


405.00'


14.00'


14.00'


14.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


345.00'


14.00'


168.32'


168.32'


DELTA


90°02'59"


89°51'03"


19°57'54"


11°58'24"


25°33'27"


32°21'19"


89°47'02"


90°12'58"


90°09'52"


4°13'18"


9°27'27"


8°30'32"


9°03'41"


20°02'07"


13°23'51"


9°28'24"


9°00'36"


6°59'57"


89°56'53"


89°52'13"


90°03'07"


56°15'43"


14°03'17"


14°12'02"


15°02'48"


12°19'46"


0°37'49"


98°27'31"


25°13'39"


24°15'30"


CH. BEARING


N45°02'32"E


N45°08'30"E


S80°05'05"W


S64°06'56"W


S45°21'00"W


S16°23'37"W


N45°06'29"E


N44°53'31"W


N44°51'58"W


S1°53'41"E


S8°44'03"E


S17°43'02"E


S26°30'08"E


S41°03'02"E


S57°46'01"E


S69°12'08"E


S78°26'38"E


S86°26'55"E


N44°58'27"W


N44°56'06"E


N45°01'33"E


S61°49'02"E


S40°42'49"E


S54°50'29"E


S69°27'54"E


S83°09'11"E


S89°37'59"E


S15°32'35"W


S77°23'10"W


S76°54'06"W


CH. DIST.


19.81'


169.58'


41.63'


25.04'


53.11'


66.90'


19.76'


19.84'


573.58'


29.83'


66.77'


60.09'


63.98'


140.90'


94.48'


66.89'


63.62'


49.44'


19.79'


19.78'


19.81'


325.33'


84.42'


85.29'


90.34'


74.10'


3.80'


21.21'


73.52'


70.74'


CURVE


C32


C33


C34


C35


C36


C37


C38


C39


C40


C41


C42


C43


C44


C45


C46


C47


C48


C49


C50


C51


C52


C53


C54


C55


C56


C57


C58


C59


C60


C61


LENGTH


2.85'


21.99'


21.99'


100.53'


19.72'


67.69'


13.13'


23.66'


112.14'


21.94'


26.90'


92.16'


38.32'


53.84'


21.55'


22.04'


94.18'


21.16'


25.24'


21.03'


21.38'


74.55'


175.12'


228.39'


140.87'


87.52'


57.17'


92.16'


52.94'


39.22'


RADIUS


168.32'


14.00'


14.00'


228.32'


228.32'


228.32'


228.32'


14.00'


345.00'


14.00'


14.00'


263.00'


263.00'


263.00'


14.00'


14.00'


60.06'


14.00'


217.00'


217.00'


14.00'


283.00'


217.00'


283.00'


282.36'


278.99'


217.00'


263.00'


264.75'


266.16'


DELTA


0°58'09"


90°00'00"


90°00'00"


25°13'39"


4°56'55"


16°59'06"


3°17'38"


96°49'15"


18°37'23"


89°47'02"


110°04'42"


20°04'42"


8°20'53"


11°43'48"


88°11'23"


90°12'58"


89°50'23"


86°34'46"


6°39'50"


5°33'08"


87°30'44"


15°05'39"


46°14'21"


46°14'21"


28°35'09"


17°58'22"


15°05'39"


20°04'42"


11°27'26"


8°26'37"


CH. BEARING


S89°30'55"W


N45°00'00"W


N45°00'00"E


N77°23'10"E


S67°14'48"W


S78°12'49"W


S88°21'11"W


S66°49'02"E


S9°05'43"E


S45°06'29"W


N34°57'39"W


N10°02'21"E


S4°10'27"W


S14°12'48"W


S45°54'18"W


N44°53'31"W


N45°08'10"E


S46°38'36"E


S1°31'18"E


N2°04'39"W


N46°14'38"W


N82°27'11"W


S81°58'28"W


S81°58'28"W


N73°07'54"E


S83°47'25"E


N82°27'11"W


S10°02'21"E


N14°19'50"W


N4°14'49"W


CH. DIST.


2.85'


19.80'


19.80'


99.72'


19.71'


67.44'


13.12'


20.94'


111.64'


19.76'


22.95'


91.69'


38.29'


53.75'


19.48'


19.84'


84.82'


19.20'


25.22'


21.02'


19.36'


74.34'


170.41'


222.24'


139.42'


87.16'


57.00'


91.69'


52.85'


39.19'


CURVE


C62


C63


C64


C65


C66


C67


C68


C69


C70


C71


C72


C73


C74


C78


C79


C80


C81


LENGTH


21.99'


204.62'


25.92'


15.01'


61.23'


60.25'


42.22'


10.89'


179.91'


35.41'


57.48'


62.57'


24.46'


23.15'


22.78'


110.18'


109.73'


RADIUS


14.00'


130.00'


129.64'


128.52'


130.00'


130.00'


130.00'


13.81'


59.50'


59.50'


59.50'


59.50'


59.50'


14.53'


14.50'


70.00'


70.00'


DELTA


90°00'00"


90°11'03"


11°27'14"


6°41'28"


26°59'03"


26°33'21"


18°36'27"


45°10'23"


173°14'35"


34°05'52"


55°20'52"


60°14'50"


23°33'01"


91°15'37"


90°00'00"


90°11'03"


89°48'57"


CH. BEARING


S45°00'00"E


S44°54'29"E


N84°17'21"W


N75°16'15"W


N58°28'17"W


N31°42'05"W


N9°07'11"W


S22°15'45"E


S42°05'47"W


N27°28'34"W


N17°14'48"E


N75°02'39"E


S63°03'26"E


S45°44'30"E


S45°00'00"W


N44°54'29"W


N45°05'31"E


CH. DIST.


19.80'


184.14'


25.87'


15.00'


60.66'


59.72'


42.03'


10.61'


118.79'


34.89'


55.27'


59.72'


24.28'


20.78'


20.51'


99.15'


98.84'


Curve Table


CURVE


C1


LENGTH


168.63'


RADIUS


786.20'


DELTA


12°17'20"


CH. BEARING


S24°12'47"E


CH. DIST.


168.30'


TAN IN


S18°04'07"E


TAN OUT


S30°21'27"E


53.55'


60.15'


84.62'


71.26'


19.71'


(608) 242-7779
1702 Pankratz St Madison, WI 53704


SHEET 2 OF 2
© MSA Professional Services, Inc.


ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL


                               www.msa-ps.com


SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE


I, BRADLEY TISDALE, PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT IN FULL
COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 236 OF THE WISCONSIN STATUTES AND THE
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN, AND UNDER THE DIRECTION
OF ELDON LAND DEVELOPMENT, LLC, MAGNOLIA MEADOWS HAS BEEN SURVEYED, DIVIDED, AND
MAPPED UNDER MY RESPONSIBLE DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; THAT SUCH PLAT CORRECTLY
REPRESENTS ALL EXTERIOR BOUNDARIES AND THE SUBDIVISION OF THE LAND SURVEYED; AND
THAT THIS LAND IS PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4
OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 11 EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON,
DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:


COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 8, THENCE N89°50'45”E ALONG THE
SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, 1590.09 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE N00°33'26”W, 255.01 FEET; THENCE S89°50'45”W, 255.47 FEET TO A POINT ON
THE EASTERLY LINE OF CSM 11716, RECORDED IN VOL 71, P 327, AS DOC NO. 4176987; THENCE
N00°08'05”E ALONG THE EASTERLY LINE OF SAID CSM 11716 AND CONTINUING ALONG THE
EASTERLY LINE OF CSM 4722, RECORDED IN VOL 21 P 23 AS DOC NO. 1892619, 899.00 FEET TO THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE PLAT OF PARKER COLE ADDITION, RECORDED AS DOC NO. 5852905;
THENCE S89°59'58E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID PARKER COLE ADDITION AND CONTINUING
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 2 OF CSM 8119, RECORDED IN VOL 43, P 221, AS, DOC NO. 2741455,
790.06 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE S00°37'54”W ALONG THE
WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY OF SOUTH PAGE STREET AS SHOWN ON SAID CSM 8119, 40.00 FEET TO A
SOUTH CORNER OF SAID CSM 8119; THENCE S89°59'58”E ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID CSM 8119
AND CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF CSM 8118, RECORDED IN VOL 43, P 218, AS DOC NO.
2741454, 525.20 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID CSM 8118; THENCE N00°24'48”W ALONG
THE EAST LINE OF SAID CSM 8118, 20.00 FEET; THENCE S89°59'58”E, 172.75 FEET TO THE
CENTERLINE OF TAYLOR LANE; THENCE 168.63 FEET ALONG A NON-TANGENTIAL CURVE CONCAVE
TO THE EAST, HAVING A RADIUS OF 786.20 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S24°12'47”E, 168.30
FEET; THENCE S30°21'26”E, 407.34 FEET; THENCE S59°16'57”W, 247.92 FEET TO A NORTH CORNER OF
CSM 15888, RECORDED IN VOL 116, P 122, AS DOC NO. 5799972; THENCE S80°54'48”W ALONG THE
NORTHERLY LINE OF SAID CSM 15888, 137.98 FEET, THENCE S00°10'56”W ALONG THE WEST LINE OF
SAID CSM 15888, 477.25 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID
SECTION 8; THENCE N89°49'05”W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION
8, 82.63 FEET TO THE SOUTH QUARTER CORNER OF SAID SECTION 8; THENCE S89°50'45”W ALONG
THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 8, 1072.96 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING.


SAID PARCEL CONTAINS 1,675,642 SQUARE FEET OR 38.467 ACRES MORE OR LESS TOTAL AND
1,601,178 SQUARE FEET OR 36.758 ACRES MORE OR LESS MINUS RIGHT-OF-WAY.


__________________________________
DATED THIS 29 DAY OF AUGUST, 2022 BRADLEY L. TISDALE


PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR #S-2824


60'


15
'


7.
5'


10'


DETAIL A


67


68


60


61


62


OUTLOT  3


15' STORMWATER
EASEMENT


60' STORMWATER
EASEMENT


STORMWATER
EASEMENT


LOT SQ FT ACRES
1 11765 0.270
2 10339 0.237
3 10339 0.237
4 10339 0.237
5 10339 0.237
6 10640 0.244
7 21524 0.494
8 10690 0.245
9 12186 0.280


10 8431 0.194
11 6995 0.161
12 7331 0.168
13 10894 0.250
14 12905 0.296
15 14310 0.329
16 12797 0.294
17 9935 0.228
18 8756 0.201
19 8157 0.187
20 7808 0.179
21 7795 0.179
22 11762 0.270
23 11462 0.263
24 7161 0.164
25 7236 0.166
26 6913 0.159
27 6951 0.160
28 6842 0.157
29 7234 0.166


LOT SQ FT ACRES
30 8828 0.203
31 6756 0.155
32 6962 0.160
33 7036 0.162
34 11182 0.257
35 11572 0.266
36 6600 0.152
37 6600 0.152
38 6600 0.152
39 6600 0.152
40 6602 0.152
41 6967 0.160
42 9908 0.227
43 7938 0.182
44 6900 0.158
45 6600 0.152
46 6600 0.152
47 6600 0.152
48 6803 0.156
49 6700 0.154
50 12802 0.294
51 6633 0.152
52 6633 0.152
53 6633 0.152
54 6633 0.152
55 7838 0.180
56 9961 0.229
57 9003 0.207
58 9000 0.207


LOT SQ FT ACRES
59 6601 0.152
60 6619 0.152
61 6650 0.153
62 11688 0.268
63 16487 0.379
64 14100 0.324
65 10686 0.245
66 9999 0.230
67 9933 0.228
68 13056 0.300
69 8606 0.198
70 6749 0.155
71 6743 0.155
72 7128 0.164
73 8041 0.185
74 10715 0.246
75 10692 0.246
76 7713 0.177
77 7856 0.180
78 12022 0.276
79 12609 0.289
80 12655 0.291
81 12353 0.284
82 13386 0.307
83 11152 0.256
84 6684 0.153
85 6684 0.153
86 7194 0.165
87 7236 0.166


LOT SQ FT ACRES
88 6714 0.154
89 6714 0.154
90 11214 0.257


OL 1 34894 0.801
OL 2 63054 1.448
OL 3 240420 5.519
OL 4 10187 0.234
OL 5 3011 0.069


LOT AREA TABLE


N


EW


S


WI
MADISON


0 50 100


PRELIMNARY PLAT OF
MAGNOLIA SPRINGS


PART OF THE SE1/4 OF THE SW1/4 AND THE SW1/4 OF
THE SE1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWN 5 NORTH, RANGE 11


EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.
25.91'



AutoCAD SHX Text

 ALONG THE 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2021 PACKETS\03-09-2021\08a-Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2021.docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee 


Action:    


Public Works Committee recommends approval  4 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-7 - 2021 First Reading:  


Second Reading: 


March 9, 2021 


March 23, 2021 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


Sec. 66-904. - Range of required improvements.  
 


 (8) Stormwater drainage facilities. Whenever in the opinion of the director of planning and development 
upon consultation with the city contract engineer there is within reasonable distance a storm sewer 
main, the subdivision or planned unit development shall be provided with a complete stormwater 
management system which shall connect with such main. If the subdivision or planned unit 
development is traversed by any watercourse or channel, stream or creek, either live or dry, the 
subdivider shall dedicate a right-of-way for storm drainage purposes conforming substantially with 
the lines of such natural watercourse or channel, stream or creek or, at the developer's option, 
subject to the approval of the plan commission and the public works committee, provide adequate 
storm drains or other means for the handling of storm flow from and through his property and 
including the conveyance thereof. In general, the entire stormwater management systems and the 
disposal of stormwater shall be planned and built to meet the approval of the director of planning 
and development upon consultation with the city contract engineer.  


Aesthetics shall be taken into consideration in the design of stormwater detention basins. 


Curvilinear rather than rectangular shaped basins shall be used wherever possible. Exposed 


rip-rap shall be kept to a minimum. More extensive areas of rip-rap should be covered with a 


thin layer of topsoil, turf reinforcement, and sod or be covered by water. Fieldstone shall be 


used for rip-rap wherever possible to provide a more natural appearance. Structures shall be 


flush with the ground surface whenever possible. Outlet control structures shall be designed to 


blend into the side slopes of the basin rather than being exposed in the bottom of the basin.  A 


landscaping plan with a minimum of one tree or substantial bush cluster per detention basin side 


or per 100 feet of the perimeter, whichever provides more plantings, is required. A minimum of 


10 feet of level surface between the top of the detention basin slope and adjacent properties is 


desired. 


 


The subdivider shall, at its own cost, construct curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm 
sewers, road ditches and open channel drainageways as may be required by the city. All such 
facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate maximum potential 
volumes of flow; the type of facility required, the design criteria and the sizes and grades to be 
determined, to present no hazard to life or property; and the size, type and installation of all 
stormwater drains and wastewater or sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed, shall be in 
accordance with the stormwater management plan and the plans and standards specifications  







approved by the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city contract 
engineer. Curb and gutter installation may be delayed pursuant to subsection (4) . Where such 
installations are delayed, the stormwater to be conveyed by the curb and gutter management 
system shall be maintained by the city at the expense of the developer. 


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section . 


This ordinance shall be in full fo rce and effect from and after its date of publication. 


Dates 


Council Adopted: ?rJ3-:}...{ 
Mayor Approved:3,93- d \ 
Published: 4- I - ~ l 


Attest: 3 - &3- ;) f 
Holl y Licht, City Clerk 


T:IPACKETSICOUNCIL\202 1 PACKETS\03-09-2021\08a-Amend Pond Aestl1etics Ch 66 202 1.docx 







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  February 11, 2021 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Stormwater Pond Aesthetics 


 


The Public Works Committee has requested changes to the City regulations regarding the 


aesthetics of large stormwater basins.  We have prepared draft language to begin the discussion.  


It is modeled off regulations in Kenosha.  


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


S:\Planning\RJS\Committees\Public Works Committee  2-11-2021- Stormwater Ponds.docx 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Sec. 66-904. - Range of required improvements.  


The following set of improvements shall be constructed within subdivisions or condominium plats 
within the corporate limits of the city, to the specifications provided:  


(1)  Survey monuments. The subdivider or condominium developer shall install survey monuments 
placed in accordance with the requirements of Section 236.15, Wisconsin Statutes, and as the 
director of planning and development may require.  


(2)  Street grading. After the installation of temporary block corner monuments the subdivider or 
condominium developer shall grade all streets proposed to be dedicated in accordance with 
standard specifications approved by the city. The subdivider or condominium developer shall 
grade the roadbeds in the street rights-of-way to subgrade.  


(3)  Street surfacing. After the installation of all utility and stormwater drainage improvements, 
including necessary lateral connections, the subdivider or condominium developer shall surface 
all roadways in streets proposed to be dedicated to the widths prescribed by subsection 66-706. 
The surfacing shall be done in accordance with standard specifications approved by the city.  


(4)  Curb and gutter. Within one year after the installation of all utility and stormwater drainage 
improvements including necessary lateral connections, the subdivider or condominium 
developer shall construct a 30-inch barrier concrete curb and gutter at pavement edges in 
accordance with standard specifications approved by the city. This requirement may be waived 
at the discretion of the city in areas designated for permanent rural use as reflected in the city's 
comprehensive plan. Wherever possible, provisions shall be made at the time of construction 
for driveway access curb cuts. The breaking or cutting of curbs will only be allowed for driveway 
aprons.  


(5)  Sidewalks and multiuse paths. Concrete sidewalks shall be a minimum of five feet in width, and 
shall be required in accordance with the requirements of section 66-712. The construction of all 
required sidewalks, walkways, and multiuse paths shall be in accordance with standard 
specifications approved by the city.  


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


(6)  Public sanitary sewerage systems. The subdivider or condominium developer shall construct 
sanitary sewers in such a manner as to make adequate sanitary sewerage service available to 
each lot within the subdivision or condominium plat. The size, type, depth, minimum grade, and 
installation of all sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed shall be in accordance with 
standard specifications approved by the utilities director. The subdivider shall assume the cost 
of installing all wastewater or sanitary sewers 12 inches in diameter or less in size. Proposed 
sanitary sewer lines shall extend to the boundary lines of the tract being subdivided unless 
prevented by topography or other physical conditions or unless, upon consultation with the city 
contract engineer, such extension is not necessary or desirable for the coordination of the 
layout of the subdivision or condominium plat or for the advantageous development of the 
adjacent tracts. The minimum depth at the boundary lines shall be as proscribed by the utilities 
director. The subdivider or condominium developer shall install and complete the installation of 
sewer laterals to the street lot line prior to any paving, curbing or sidewalk construction. The 
subdivider or condominium developer shall assume the cost of installing all sanitary sewers  


(7)  Private sewage disposal systems. If public sewer facilities are not available, the subdivider or 
condominium developer shall make provision for adequate private sewage disposal systems. If 
at the time of final platting, sanitary sewer facilities are not available to the subdivision or 
condominium plat, but will become available within a period of five years from the date of 
recording, the subdivider or condominium developer shall install or cause to be installed 
sanitary sewers and sewer laterals to the street lot line in accordance with this section and shall 
cap all laterals as may be specified by standard specifications approved by the utilities director.  







(8) Stormwater drainage facilities. Whenever in the opinion of the director of planning and 
development upon consultation with the city contract engineer there is within reasonable 
distance a storm sewer main, the subdivision or planned unit development shall be provided 
with a complete stormwater management system which shall connect with such main. If the 
subdivision or planned unit development is traversed by any watercourse or channel, stream or 
creek, either live or dry, the subdivider shall dedicate a right-of-way for storm drainage purposes 
conforming substantially with the lines of such natural watercourse or channel, stream or creek 
or, at the developer's option, subject to the approval of the plan commission and the public 
works committee, provide adequate storm drains or other means for the handling of storm flow 
from and through his property and including the conveyance thereof. In general, the entire 
stormwater management systems and the disposal of stormwater shall be planned and built to 
meet the approval of the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city 
contract engineer.  


Aesthetics shall be taken into consideration in the design of stormwater detention basins. 


Curvilinear rather than rectangular shaped basins shall be used wherever possible. Exposed 


rip-rap shall be kept to a minimum. More extensive areas of rip-rap should be covered with a 


thin layer of topsoil, turf reinforcement, and sod or be covered by water. Fieldstone shall be 


used for rip-rap wherever possible to provide a more natural appearance. Structures shall be 


flush with the ground surface whenever possible. Outlet control structures shall be designed to 


blend into the side slopes of the basin rather than being exposed in the bottom of the basin.  A 


landscaping plan with a minimum of one tree or substantial bush cluster per detention basin 


side or per 100 feet of the perimeter, whichever provides more plantings, is required. A 


minimum of 10 feet of level surface between the top of the detention basin slope and adjacent 


properties is desired. 


The subdivider shall, at its own cost, construct curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm 
sewers, road ditches and open channel drainageways as may be required by the city. All such 
facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate maximum potential 
volumes of flow; the type of facility required, the design criteria and the sizes and grades to be 
determined, to present no hazard to life or property; and the size, type and installation of all 
stormwater drains and wastewater or sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed, shall be in 
accordance with the stormwater management plan and the plans and standards specifications 
approved by the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city contract 
engineer. Curb and gutter installation may be delayed pursuant to subsection (4). Where such 
installations are delayed, the stormwater to be conveyed by the curb and gutter management 
system shall be maintained by the city at the expense of the developer.  


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


(9)  Public water supply facilities. The subdivider or condominium developer shall construct water 
mains in such a manner as to make adequate water service available to each lot within the 
subdivision or condominium plat. The subdivider shall assume the cost of installing all water 
mains 12 inches in diameter or less in size. Proposed water supply lines shall extend to the 
boundary lines of the tract being subdivided unless prevented by topography or other physical 
conditions or unless, in the opinion of the utilities director, such extension is not necessary or 
desirable for the coordination of the layout of the subdivision or condominium plat or for the 
advantageous development of the adjacent tracts. If public water service is not available, the 
subdivider or condominium developer shall make provision for adequate private water systems 
as specified by the city, state, county and/or town. The subdivider or condominium developer 
shall install and complete the installation of all required water laterals to the street lot line prior 
to any paving, curbing or sidewalk construction.  


(10)  Other utilities. The subdivider or condominium developer shall cause gas, electrical power, 
telephone, cable television, and other telecommunications facilities to be installed in such a 







manner as to make adequate service available to each lot in the subdivision or condominium 
plat. No such utility service shall be located on overhead poles. All installations must be 
underground. Plans indicating the proposed location of all utilities required to serve the plat shall 
be approved by the city.  


(11)  Street lights. The subdivider shall fund the installation of street lights along all streets 
proposed to be dedicated of a design compatible with the neighborhood, the type of 
development proposed, and city maintenance costs, as approved by the utilities director. Such 
lights shall be placed at each street intersection and at such interior block spacing as may be 
required by the utilities director.  


(12)  Street signs. The city shall install at the intersection of all streets proposed to be dedicated a 
street name sign of a design specified by the city. The city shall also install regulatory signs 
along all streets as necessary. The subdivider or condominium developer shall be responsible 
for reimbursing the city for all costs associated with the purchase and installation of required 
street name and regulatory signs.  


(13)  Terrace trees. The developer shall install or pay a fee to fund the installation of terrace trees. 
The number of required trees shall be determined using the methodology in section 10-2(5) of 
this Code. If the developer elects to install the required terrace trees, such installation shall be 
done in accordance with a tree planting plan approved by the public works director or their 
designee. The tree planting plan shall specify the number, species and location of required 
trees. If the developer elects to pay a fee to fund the installation of terrace trees, the fee shall be 
calculated using the methodology in section 10-2(6) of this Code.  


(14)  Driveways. Where driveways are to be provided, a concrete apron from all property lines to 
the pavement edge of adjacent streets shall be installed and shall otherwise comply with the 
applicable requirements of the city's municipal code.  


(Ord. No. 0-7-09, 6-23-2009; Ord. No. 0-8-2016, 5-24-2016; Ord. No. 0-5-2018, § 2, 2-13-2018)  







Public Works Committee
Thursday, September 17, 2020
(Virtual Meeting)


Members Present: Tom Majewski, Sid Boersma, Fred Hundt and Mayor Swadley


Absent/Excused: Lisa Reeves


Staff: Public Works Director Brett Hebert and Vickie Erdahl


Guests:


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:10 PM


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 No large increases were requested in the 2021 Public Works Operating Budget,
however, an additional $3,000 increase was requested for tree planting infill since there
is no more funds in the EAB account.


 A staff position for an Equipment Operator was requested for the Parks Department


2) Approve August 20, 2020 Meeting Minutes: Motion by Boersma seconded by Hundt to
approve the minutes. Motion carried 3-0.


Old Business:


3) Review Rollout of Curbside E-waste Program:


The Public Works Committee approved the program for e-waste to be part of the bulk pick up
for the City and will now be discussed at Council. The electronic pick up can occur twice a
year in place of a regular monthly bulk pick up and must be called in to schedule.


The program will begin on January 1, 2021 at a charge of $6.00/yr. or .50 cents per resident
which will be put on the tax roll.


New Business:


4) Review Council Goals Pertaining to Public Works: Committee reviewed with the goals from
the City Council for 2020. Staff will provide responses to various items pertaining to Public
Works and Planning. Several items were discussed in greater detail see item #’s 5 & 6.


5) Approve the Director of Public Works or Their Designee to Apply for the DNR Urban
Forestry Projects Grant to Purchase Trees to Distribute to Residents to Replace Ash
Trees on Their Property that were removed due to the Emerald Ash Borer:


Hundt addressed the committee regarding the grant in which 40 bare root trees will be
purchased and placed in a gravel bed. In the fall of 2021 these trees will be given to city
residents who have had to remove ash trees on private property to restore canopy coverage.







The funds will be spent from the Tree Commission Donation Fund. Total Cost of the project
of $4,144.60 with half of that cost being reimbursed back to the city by the DNR upon
completion. The city’s share of the project is $2,072.30 with $1,344.60 of that cost being
covered by staff and volunteer time. Therefore, the city portion of the project is $727.70. This
cost will be borne by the Tree Commission Budget, which currently has in excess of $4,800 in
that account.


The grant needs to be submitted by October 1, 2020 to be considered.


Motion by Hundt and seconded by Boersma to move forward with the process and submit
the application for the 2021 Grant to the Department of Natural Resources Grant.


Motion carried 4-0 with the Mayor voting yes.


6) Discuss the creation of a storm water basin design standard: Majewski would like a storm
water basin design standard/ordinance developed for the city stating that he would like the
shape and esthetics of the basins to be more natural.


Scheel stated that the DNR has standards and design criteria in place that could be reviewed.
Hebert stated that the committee should also consider and discuss the maintenance after
installation.


Committee members will research topography and designs for basins and bring the information
to a future meeting.


7) Discussion on the Minimum Terrace Widths for New Developments: Majewski would like a
review of the right-of-way standards and minimum terrace widths. Scheel stated that the
standards were updated in 2009 and in newer subdivisions the terrace widths are substantially
larger along and remember there is a lot of competition for the right-of-way.


A suggestion made was that when designing a new subdivision, terrace widths be determined
by what category the road is (i.e. main or collector street) and a width that can support the
urban forest.


8) Discussion Pertaining to the DOT Inspection of the Jefferson St Pedestrian Bridge: Hebert
stated that as of September 17, 2020 the bridge had been closed until further notice as the State
had deemed the bridge structurally unsafe. The annual inspection report should be received by
next week. At that point Strand can develop a design and costs to either remove or repair the
bridge. Hebert will bring the costs to the committee when available.


The bridge was already in the CIP budget for 2021 to remove or replace. Mayor Swadley
stated that a federal grant had been applied for, however, we did not receive the grant –


 should we apply again in 2021 and put off making a decision for another year?
 Is the bridge even worth repairing?
 Remove and not replace? Majewski stated that the last time this issue was brought up, a lot


of people showed up at the public meeting in support of keeping the bridge
 Get data on usage of the bridge and other similar structures
 Look at another type of grant through the DNR


9) Future Agenda Items: Storm Water Basins, Pedestrian Bridge and Terrace Widths



rjscheel

Highlight







10) Adjourn: Motion to adjourn by Majewski, seconded by Hundt to adjourn the meeting at
6:52 pm. Motion carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl







 
Public Works Committee  
Thursday, January 19th, 2023 
(Hybrid Meeting) 
 
Members Present: Tom Majewski, Jean Ligocki, Kay Rashka, Fred Hundt, Jeffrey Bartzen and 
Mayor Swadley 


Absent/Excused: Rachel Venegas 


Staff:  Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Planning Director Rodney Scheel  
 
Guests:  
 
Call to Order:  Majewski called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM 


 


1) Communications:    


• Director Hebert presented a breakdown of snow totals for the last four years. We are 
averaging 21.75 snow events, 44 inches of snow and using 522.5 tons of salt 


 
 


2)    Approve December 15th, 2022 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Hundt to approve the 
minutes and seconded by Ligocki. Motion carried 5-0.    


 
3) Old Business: Discuss and Possible Approval of Public Stormwater Basin Design 
Language: 


Director Scheel presented the current ordinance and highlighted the area that was 
modified in 2021 along with the suggested language provided by Majewski. Discussion 
was had of how and where to insert the new language; in which everyone was in favor for. 
Hundt proposed the new verbiage of “Basins shall be designed to appear as a naturally formed 
body of water with irregular and imperfect flowing shoreline with curving appearance and no 
angular or geometric shapes” to be inserted after the first sentence of the current ordinance. 
Bartzen also suggested to put in specifics; “For example; no perfectly symmetrical circles, 
ovals, rectangles or squares”  


 
Motion to accept the proposed new language to go to Council for approval, seconded by 
Ligocki. Motion carried 5-0 
 
 
 New Business: 
 
4) Review and Approve Cost Allocation Framework for Joint Street and Utility Projects: 
Director Hebert presented a breakdown of upcoming joint street construction projects that he, 
Scheel and Jill Weiss (Utility Director) have been working on for the last few months. The 
framework specifies which department would be financially responsible for each project.  
Motion by Hundt to approve and bring to Council for approval, seconded by Majewski. 
Motion carried 5-0 







 
  
5) 2023 Street Construction Project Overview: 
  
 a) Jackson St – Path vs Sidewalk Replacement 
 Director Scheel presented areas to take into consideration for this project as well as a 
breakdown of estimate cost for asphalt ($169,910) vs concrete ($186,160). It was found that 
concrete would be about $16,000 more than asphalt however, it was pointed out it concrete would 
potentially last 10-15 years longer that asphalt if installed properly.  If the shared-use path is not 
installed, the estimated cost to replace defective sidewalk in area proposed for the shared-use path is 
$65,000.  The committee supports moving forward with a concrete shared-use path on the south 
side of Jackson Street from USH 51 to Silverado Drive.  This compliment the 2023 shared-use 
path project that will extend along the west side of Paradise Pond from Jackson Street north to the 
51 West Development. 
 
 b) Kensington Square – Sidewalk Infill 
 Director Scheel reported this year’s project will include infilling sidewalk on the west side of 
Kensington Square north of Jackson Street.  There is one parcel that is missing sidewalk and this 
infill will connect existing sidewalk on both ends. 
 
 c) Bickley Ct 
 Director Scheel presented the plan from Strand along with current pictures of the area showing 
there currently is no sidewalk in place now; with the exception of an area that has a sidewalk that 
does not connect or lead anywhere. He explained that they could taper the driveways to create a 
better apron instead of putting in sidewalks since there is very little pedestrian traffic in this area.  
The committee supports moving forward without provisions for sidewalks to be installed now or 
in the future on Bickley Court.  This will allow driveway aprons to be installed without sidewalk 
installed through them.  Also, the small existing sidewalk sections will be removed.     
  
 c) Miscellaneous Design Items 
 Director Scheel went over the preliminary design layout for the S. Fourth St reconstruction 
project, which is part of the BIL grant program, from Milwaukee St to Isham.  A 10-foot-wide 
multi-use path is slated to be included in the project on the west side of the road.  The committee 
discussed removing the existing intermittent sections of sidewalk on the east side of the road.  The 
committee supports moving forward with the project design that will remove the existing sidewalk 
on the east side of South Fourth Street south of Mandt Parkway and reducing the street width to 
33 feet south of Mandt Parkway and 39 feet north of Mandt Parkway. 
 
 d) Construction Project Open House 
 Director Scheel stated a direct mailer is going out this week and the Open House will take 
place January 30th at 6:00pm at the Fire Department.  
 
6) Norse Park Playground Design Ideas: 
Director Hebert presented a design guide to replace the current playground. The idea of a 
Nordic/Viking theme with ideas of a Viking ship, swings nautical climbing structure along with 
ADA sensory features were sent to vendors for proposals. 







 
 
7) Future Agenda Items:    
 
  
8) Adjourn: Motion to adjourn by Ligocki, seconded by Rashka to adjourn the meeting at 
7:10pm pm. Motion carried 5-0 
 
Respectfully submitted by Jen Wagner 1/20/2023 







C:\Users\rjscheel\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\Q3DNJPWZ\Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023_MSA recommendation 
(002).docx 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee 
Action:    


Public Works Committee recommends approval  6 - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2023 Date Introduced:  February 14, 2023 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


Sec. 66-904. - Range of required improvements.  
 


 (8) Stormwater drainage facilities. Whenever in the opinion of the director of planning and development 
upon consultation with the city contract engineer there is within reasonable distance a storm sewer 
main, the subdivision or planned unit development shall be provided with a complete stormwater 
management system which shall connect with such main. If the subdivision or planned unit 
development is traversed by any watercourse or channel, stream or creek, either live or dry, the 
subdivider shall dedicate a right-of-way for storm drainage purposes conforming substantially with 
the lines of such natural watercourse or channel, stream or creek or, at the developer's option, 
subject to the approval of the plan commission and the public works committee, provide adequate 
storm drains or other means for the handling of storm flow from and through his property and 
including the conveyance thereof. In general, the entire stormwater management systems and the 
disposal of stormwater shall be planned and built to meet the approval of the director of planning 
and development upon consultation with the city contract engineer.  


Aesthetics shall be taken into consideration in the design of stormwater detention “wet” basins, 
with the goal of appearing more as a naturally formed than as engineered.  Wet basins shall 
have an irregular, curving appearance at the permanent pool elevation (see Exhibit 8A), while 
the top edge of the basin may generally follow straight lines, with the result that the side slopes 
of the basin between those elevations will vary around the basin. Basin corners at the top edge 
shall have a typical minimum radius of 25 feet, if attainable, but not less than 10-foot radius. The 
distance between the top of the containment/embankment and the property line shall vary. The 
landscaping plan for wet basins shall include a mix of trees and shrub clusters (3 or more per 
cluster) totaling 15 landscaping points (following Sec. 78.603) per detention basin side or per 
100 feet of pond perimeter, whichever provides more plantings, however trees shall be located 
such that the tree canopy at maturity will remain outside the top edge of the basin to prevent 
root damage to the basin. 
 
 


Deleted: Basins shall be designed to appear as a 
naturally formed body of water with irregular and imperfect 
flowing shoreline with curving appearance and no angular 
or geometric shapes. (For example, no perfectly 
symmetrical circles, ovals, rectangles or squares.)  


Formatted: Font color: Auto


Deleted: Curvilinear rather than rectangular shaped 
basins shall be used wherever possible. Exposed rip-rap 
shall be kept to a minimum. More extensive areas of rip-
rap should be covered with a thin layer of topsoil, turf 
reinforcement, and sod or be covered by water. Fieldstone 
shall be used for rip-rap wherever possible to provide a 
more natural appearance. Structures shall be flush with the 
ground surface whenever possible. Outlet control 
structures shall be designed to blend into the side slopes 
of the basin rather than being exposed in the bottom of the 
basin.  A landscaping plan with a minimum of one tree or 
substantial bush cluster per detention basin side or per 100 
feet of the perimeter, whichever provides more plantings, is 
required. A minimum of 10 feet of level surface between 
the top of the detention basin slope and adjacent 
properties is desired.







C:\Users\rjscheel\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\Q3DNJPWZ\Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023_MSA recommendation 
(002).docx 
 


Exhibit 8A. Conceptual Typical Section   
(Source: Wisconsin DNR Wet Detention Pond Technical Standards) 


Exhibit 8B. Conceptual Design 


 
 
The subdivider shall, at its own cost, construct curbs and gutters, catch basins and inlets, storm 
sewers, road ditches and open channel drainageways as may be required by the city. All such 
facilities are to be of adequate size and grade to hydraulically accommodate maximum potential 
volumes of flow; the type of facility required, the design criteria and the sizes and grades to be 
determined, to present no hazard to life or property; and the size, type and installation of all 
stormwater drains and wastewater or sanitary sewers proposed to be constructed, shall be in 
accordance with the stormwater management plan and the plans and standards specifications 
approved by the director of planning and development upon consultation with the city contract 
engineer. Curb and gutter installation may be delayed pursuant to subsection (4). Where such 
installations are delayed, the stormwater to be conveyed by the curb and gutter management 
system shall be maintained by the city at the expense of the developer.  
 







C:\Users\rjscheel\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\Q3DNJPWZ\Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023_MSA recommendation 
(002).docx 


Subdividers shall refer to the official map for site-specific standards related to the requirements 
of this section.  


This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its date of publication. 
 


Dates 
 
Council Adopted:   
 
Mayor Approved:            
      Tim Swadley, Mayor 
Published:    
 
Attest:             


       Candee Christen, City Clerk 





		08 O-03-2023 Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023 - PW Action

		08a Public Works 12-12-2022 - Stormwater Pond Design - with attachments

		O-7-2021-Amending Sections 66-904 (8) of the Stoughton Municipal Code-signed.pdf

		08a-Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2021

		08b-Public Works Committee  2-11-2021- Stormwater Ponds-package updated





		08b PW Min January 19 2023-rjs

		08c Amend Pond  Aesthetics Ch 66  2023_MSA recommendation










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 


ADOPTION OF A PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PLAN  
FOR THE CITY OF STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission Recommends Approval  


Fiscal Impact: 
 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R -17- 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
February 14, 2023 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton will prepare an updated Comprehensive Plan under the authority 
of and procedures established by §66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton on May 1, 2005, adopted the City of Stoughton Comprehensive 
Plan, and on September 5, 2019, amended the Plan,  under the authority of and procedures established by 
§66.1001(4), Wisconsin Statutes; and  


 WHEREAS, §66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin Statutes, requires that the governing body of the local 
governmental unit adopt written procedures designed to foster public participation at every stage of the 
comprehensive plan preparation or amendment process, and that such written procedures shall provide for 
wide distribution of draft plan materials, an opportunity for the public to submit written comments on the 
plan materials, and a process for the governing body to respond to such comments; and 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton believes that meaningful public involvement in processes 
designed to periodically consider and update its Comprehensive Plan is important to assure that the resulting 
Plan meets the wishes and expectations of the public; and 


 WHEREAS, the attached “Public Participation Plan” includes procedures to foster public 
participation, ensure distribution of draft plan materials, provide opportunities for written comments on such 
materials, and provide mechanisms to respond to such comments. 


 WHEREAS, at a duly noticed public meeting held on February 13, 2023, the City of Stoughton Plan 
Commission adopted R - 2 - 2023 recommending that the Stoughton Common Council adopt the attached 
“Public Participation Plan” as its public participation procedures for updating the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby 
adopts the procedures included in the “Public Participation Plan” as its public participation procedures 
for updating the City’s Comprehensive Plan, meeting the requirements of §66.1001(4)(a), Wisconsin 
Statutes. 


 
Approved this 14th day of February 2023. 


 
      _________________________________ 
      Tim Swadley, Mayor 


ATTEST: 
  
________________________________ 
Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 
 
S:\Planning\MPS\Comprehensive Plan\2023 Amendment - STI\Comp Plan PPP Council 2023.doc 







Page 1 of 2 
 


Proposal to Amend the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan 


January 19, 2023 


Overview 


STI Holding, Inc. is preparing a development proposal for a mix of business, residential, park and 


open space uses on 182 acres at the southeast corner of State Highway 51 and County Highway 


B.  


This land is currently identified on the future land use map (excerpt below, outlined in red), for 


Planned Mixed Use (purple), Planned Neighborhood (speckled yellow), and Recreation or Public 


Open Space (green). It is also the focus of Appendix B: 2006 Linnerud Detailed Neighborhood 


Plan (“Linnerud Plan”). 


What is STI Holding, Inc. Proposing? 


STI Holdings, Inc. envisions for this land 


the following uses: 


 A mix of high‐quality office and 


retail uses, including the new 


world headquarters facility for 


Stoughton Trailers 


 New homes, including a varied 


mix of attached‐unit housing in 


various forms and single‐family 


lots 


 A large community park 


(minimum 30 acres) to 


accommodate both neighborhood and community‐wide recreation needs and extensive 


wetland and stormwater management features 


An initial site plan is included with this submittal. 


 


Why is a Comprehensive Plan Amendment Needed? 


While the intended uses are consistent with the uses identified in the Linnerud Plan, their 


configuration on the site is expected to vary from the current plan. Most notably, the area 


identified in green for Recreation and Open Space is expected to be larger than currently shown 


due to more stringent stormwater management standards and the intent to dedicate more 


parkland than is required by ordinance to develop a large community park. Enhanced 


understanding of the natural characteristics of the site may alter which parts of the site are 


reserved for these purposes. 







Page 2 of 2 
 


The Linnerud Plan was adopted into the Comprehensive Plan and the City is therefore required 


to demonstrate consistency with the very detailed land use configurations in the plan. That plan 


was created around a proposed Walmart that was later developed elsewhere. While the mix of 


uses is generally similar to what STI intends to propose, there is concern that the consistency 


requirement cannot be satisfied due to the detailed land use mapping in the neighborhood 


plan. 


Following discussion with City staff, STI Holdings, Inc. prefers to amend the Comprehensive Plan 


to ensure, through a public process, that the plan and the development proposal will be 


compatible. 


How will the Plan be Amended? 


STI Holdings, Inc. proposes to revise the Future Land Use Map and remove the Linnerud Plan 


from the Comprehensive Plan. In place of the neighborhood plan we will propose text 


describing design parameters for the site, including description of expectations for: 


• diversity of uses,  


• diversity of housing types,  


• opportunities for employment, 


• attention to public spaces, and 


• safe, comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian routes.  


Specific sections to be amended would likely include  Planned Mixed Use (p. 58) and Northwest 


Planned Neighborhood (p. 65).  The specific language and map changes will be provided for 


review by all stakeholders during the process. 


What is the Process and Schedule for this Plan Amendment? 


We are providing a draft Public Participation Plan, which includes a developer‐led public 


meeting in February. We intend to discuss the proposed Comprehensive Plan amendment with 


Plan Commission in February and March, request a public hearing and recommendation on the 


amendment at Plan Commission in early April, and request Council adoption of the amendment 


in late April.  


The development team is currently engaged in preliminary engineering to support the 


Comprehensive Plan amendment and an Urban Service Area (USA) amendment that will bring 


these lands into the USA boundary. The Urban Service Area Amendment is expected to be 


introduced alongside the comprehensive plan amendment for consideration and approval. 


What are we Requesting Tonight? 
The intent of tonight’s discussion is to inform Council about STI Holdings’ development intentions and 


begin the process to amend the Comprehensive Plan. The draft Public Participation Plan is provided 


tonight for your review, however we are not yet asking for approval. We will introduce and seek a 


recommendation on the Public Participation Plan at the February 13th Plan Commission meeting. If Plan 


Commission recommends approval by Council, we intend to request approval of the Public Participation 


Plan at the February 14th Council meeting.  Your feedback tonight is appreciated, especially regarding 


the prospect of a Comprehensive Plan amendment and the process for doing so. 







Parks, Trails & 
Stormwater


Residential (79 Acres)


Commercial & 
Mixed Use (34 Acres)


LEGEND


STI Holdings, LLC PROPERTY
Draft Concept JANUARY 12, 2023


Rutland Dunn Town Line Rd


Greenbriar Dr


Kings Lynn Rd


Kriedeman Dr


Road “D”


Road “C
”


Ro
ad


 “E
”


O
akridge W


ay


U
S 


H
IG


H
W


AY
 5


1


COUNTY HIGHWAY B


Road “B”


G
reenbriar D


r


Road “A”


PARK
73.8 Total Acres


(32.0 Parkland Acres)


Wet
Basin


Dry
Basin


Dry Basin


Dry Basin


Wet
Basin


Lake


Wet
Basin


Wetland


Wet
Basin


Wetland


Wet
Basin


Wetland
fillWetland


fill


TRAIL OUTLOT
0.70 Acres


Dry
Basin


Dry
Basin


Dry
Basin







Page 1 of 2 
 


 
 


Stoughton Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
Public Participation Plan 


 
 
The City has developed the following public participation plan to inform and engage the public as part of the 
requirements of the Comprehensive Planning state statues (Wis. Stat. 66.1001(4)a).   
 
Public Participation Opportunities: 
The City is considering amendment to its Comprehensive Plan with opportunities for public participation including, but 
not limited, to the following activities: 


 
1. Project Meetings:  


a. Standing Committee Meetings All meetings which involve agenda items related to the Comprehensive Plan 
amendment are anticipated to occur in open session and will be noticed according to City’s agenda posting 
practices.   


 
I. Plan Commission Meetings.  The Plan Commission will have the responsibility for reviewing and 


recommending the draft Comprehensive Plan amendment prepared by the STI Holdings Inc. 
Development Team.  The planning process includes at least two (2) Plan Commission meetings to 
review the Comp Plan amendment, including a public hearing on the draft amendment. 


II. City Council Meetings.  The planning process will include at least one (1) meeting attended by the 
development team with the City Council.  The City Council shall have the authority to adopt the 
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 


III. Public Hearing.  At least one (1) public hearing will be held on the Comprehensive Plan amendment 
prior to adoption by either the Plan Commission or City Council as required under Wis. Stat. 
66.1001(4)d. 
 


2. Public Meeting: The development team will setup and host a public meeting to share the concept and allow for 
opportunities to provide feedback. 


3. Digital Engagement: 


a. Promotional Methods:  


I. City Website. The City will utilize the its website to post draft plan materials, project and meeting notices, 
and meeting minutes as they become available.  
 


II. Social Media. During the process social media will be used to keep the general public informed. 
 


III. Newspaper Articles. The City with support of the STI Holding Inc. Development Team will reach out to the 
local newspaper prior to key project events and milestones to encourage and inform articles about the 
process.   


 


Plan Adoption Procedures: 


1. The Plan Commission shall, by majority vote, adopt a resolution recommending that the City Council pass an 
ordinance to amend the Comprehensive Plan (Wis. Stat. 66.1001(4)b).   


 
2. Prior to adopting the Comprehensive Plan amendment, the City will hold at least one (1) Public Hearing on the plan.  


As stated in Wis. Stat. 66.1001(4)d, the hearing must be preceded by a Class 1 notice under ch.985. a minimum of 







Page 2 of 2 
 


30 days prior to the hearing.  Said notice shall contain at least the following information: 
 


a. The date, time and place of the hearing.  
b. 66.1001(4)(d)2. A summary, which may include a map, of the proposed comprehensive plan amendment.  
c. 66.1001(4)(d)3. The name of an individual employed by the local governmental unit who may provide 


additional information regarding the proposed ordinance.  
d. 66.1001(4)(d)4. Information relating to where and when the proposed comprehensive plan amendment to 


such a plan may be inspected before the hearing, and how a copy of the plan or amendment may be obtained.  
 


3. At least 30 days before the public hearing is held the City shall provide written notice to all of the following, as stated 
in Wis. Stat. 66.1001(4)e:    


a. An operator who has obtained, or made application for, a permit that is described under s. 295.12(3)d, within 
the jurisdiction of the City. 


b. A person who has registered a marketable nonmetallic mineral deposit under s. 295.20 within the jurisdiction 
of the City. 


c. Any other property owner or leaseholder who has an interest in property pursuant to which the person may 
extract nonmetallic mineral resources, if the property owner or leaseholder requests in writing that the City 
provide the property owner or leaseholder notice of the hearing. 


d. Any person who has submitted a request to receive notice of any proposed ordinance that affects the 
allowable use of property owned by the person. 


 
4. An electronic copy of the draft plan, or notification on how to view/download a copy of the plan amendment online, 


will be disseminated to neighboring jurisdictions and appropriate governments, as stated in Wis. Stat. 66.1001 (4)b, 
providing 30 days for written comments.  A copy of the Draft amendment will be sent to:    
 
a. The Clerk for the Towns of Pleasant Springs and Dunn shall receive a copy of the plan. 


b. Stoughton Public Library 
 


5. The City Council, by a majority vote, shall enact the ordinance adopting the amendment (Wis. Stat. 66.1001(4)c).  An 
electronic copy of the adopted amendment and ordinance, or notification on how to view/download a copy of the 
plan online, will be disseminated to the above-mentioned governing bodies, as stated in Wis. Stat. 66.1001(4)b. 


 



http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.1001(4)(d)2.

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.1001(4)(d)3.

http://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/document/statutes/66.1001(4)(d)4.



		09 R-17-2023 Comp Plan PPP Council 2023

		09a Comprehensive Plan Amend - Linnerud Property

		ADP6B65.tmp

		Stoughton Comprehensive Plan Amendment

		Public Participation Plan












CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S FORREST ST, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approve cost reimbursement agreement – Stoughton Trailers Hwy 51 Development 
 
Committee 
Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommended approval ____on 02/14/2023 
                                                            TIME SENSITIVE ITEM 


 
Fiscal Impact:   Net zero impact, but dollar amounts undetermined 
 
File Number: 


 
R-18-2023 Date 02/14/23  


 
The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 


RECITALS 


 WHEREAS, the cost reimbursement agreement with STI Holdings, Inc. arises from their 
wish to develop certain property in the City of Stoughton; and, 


 WHEREAS, STI Holdings, Inc. would like the City of Stoughton to apply to the Capital 
Area Regional Planning Commission (CARPC) and Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 
to add the property to the Urban Service Area;  


 WHEREAS, STI Holdings, Inc. intends to ask the City of Stoughton to (a) amend the 
City’s comprehensive plan; (b) approve land division, zoning and stormwater management 
applications; and (c) provide tax increment financing for the development; and, 


 WHEREAS, the requests from STI Holdings, Inc. to the City of Stoughton will require 
the City to incur costs for internal and professional review; and, 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton requires STI Holdings, Inc. to enter into an agreement 
to avoid undue expense to the City of Stoughton; and, 


 WHEREAS, the proposed Cost Reimbursement Agreement for the Stoughton Trailers 
Hwy 51 Development has been approved by staff, STI Holdings, Inc. and the City Attorney and is 
attached as Attachment A; and, 


 WHEREAS, STI Holdings, Inc. would like Stoughton Utilities to review the proposed 
development plan to identify the impacts it will have on utility services, including any increased 
need for services; and, 


 WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities requests STI Holdings, Inc. to enter into an agreement to 
avoid undue expense to Stoughton Utilities; and, 


 WHEREAS, the proposed Cost Reimbursement agreement between Stoughton Utilities 
and STI Holdings, Inc. has been approved by staff, STI Holdings, Inc. and the City Attorney and 
is included as Exhibit A and Exhibit B on Attachment A referenced above;  







   


 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of 
Stoughton hereby approves the Cost Reimbursement Agreement for the Stoughton Trailers Hwy 
51 Development as well as the Stoughton Utilities Development Plan Review Cost Reimbursement 
Agreement, attached as Attachment A; and, 


   


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
  
                                          
Mayor Tim Swadley    Date 
 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


1 


COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 


STOUGHTON TRAILERS HWY 51 DEVELOPMENT 


This Agreement is made and entered into by the City of Stoughton, a Wisconsin 
municipal corporation (the "City"), and STI Holdings, Inc., a Wisconsin corporation 
(hereafter referred to as the "Developer"). 


RECITALS 


A. This Cost Reimbursement Agreement arises from Developer’s wish to develop
certain property located in Stoughton, Wisconsin, and generally described in the
Draft Concept map attached as Exhibit B (the “Property”).


B. Developer would like the City to apply to the Capital Area Regional Planning
Commission and the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources to add the
Property to the Urban Service Area, and intends to ask the City to amend the City’s
comprehensive plan, to approve land division, zoning, and stormwater management
applications, and to provide tax increment financing for the development, all of
which will require the City to incur costs for internal review and for professional
review.


C. Developer and the City acknowledge that Developer would like to develop the
Property in phases, and that whether and how phasing may occur will be determined
in the course of the review and action on Developer’s proposed division and
development of the Property.


D. The City requires Developer to enter into this Agreement to avoid undue expense to
the City.


AGREEMENT 


In consideration of the recitals and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth 
in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows. 


1. DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY.


A. Zoning and Compliance with Plans and Regulations.  The parties anticipate
that Developer will ask the City to amend its Comprehensive Plan and to


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


2 


apply for zoning of the Property that is consistent with the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan as amended. Any development of the Property shall be 
consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan, and shall be reviewed and 
considered in accordance with the City's Comprehensive Plan, and land 
division, zoning, stormwater management, building and other regulations 
relating to the development of the Property. 
 


B. Public Improvements.  Developer shall be solely responsible for the cost of 
constructing any and all public improvements needed to serve the 
development of the Property, including the cost of extending any off-site 
improvements to the Property. The City shall have no obligation to obtain 
any interests needed to extend public improvements to the Property, through 
the exercise of eminent domain or otherwise. 


 
C. Water Main Looping.  Development of the Property shall require the looping 


of water main.  Developer shall be responsible for the cost of any water 
modeling the City deems necessary, and for the cost of constructing any off-
site water infrastructure the City seems necessary to provide adequate water 
quality, capacity and pressures to serve the Property when developed.  


 
D. Sanitary sewer capacity.  Development of the Property shall require 


evaluation of the capacity of the sanitary sewer infrastructure downstream of 
the Property.  Developer shall be responsible for the cost of any sanitary 
sewer capacity study deemed necessary by the City, and for the cost of any 
off-site sanitary sewer infrastructure the City deems necessary to provide 
adequate sanitary sewer capacity to serve the development of the Property. 
For purposes of this section, “development” means the construction of public 
or private improvements within the Property.     


 
E. Other Requirements Apply.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to relieve, 


nor shall it be construed as relieving, or in any way satisfying, obligations, 
procedures or requirements to the City of Stoughton pertaining to the future 
development or division of the Property.  


 
2. FEES AND COSTS. 
 


A. Application, Review and Administrative Fees.  Developer shall pay to the 
City, within 30 days after delivery of a written request for payment, all legal, 
engineering, and other consulting or administrative fees, costs and expenses 
incurred or accrued before or after the execution of this Agreement in 
connection with: (1) the review and processing of petitions, applications and 
plans for the, zoning, division or development of the Property, amending the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan, and tax increment financing; (2) the negotiation, 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


3 


preparation, consideration and review of this Agreement and other 
agreements relating to the Development of the Property; (3) the development 
of the Property, including costs incurred in connection with the construction, 
inspection or acceptance of public improvements. Consulting, planning, 
engineering, and legal fees shall be the actual costs to the City on the basis 
of submitted invoices, copies of which shall be provided to Developer with 
the City’s request for reimbursement of such costs. Administrative fees 
including city staff time shall be calculated on an hourly basis, using the 
effective rate the City pays for City employee staff time, which includes 
wages and benefits paid to City employees.    The City shall provide itemized 
statements showing City staff time for which Developer is responsible upon 
request.  Inspection and observation fees during construction shall be the 
actual cost to the City on the basis of submitted invoices, copies of which 
shall be provided to Developer with the City’s request for reimbursement of 
such costs.  Before processing any application for approval of any 
Comprehensive Plan amendment, land division, change in zoning, erosion 
control or stormwater management plan, or other approval, Developer shall 
deposit $10,000.00 with the City to secure Developer’s payment of costs 
pursuant to this Section.  The City may apply the deposit to pay costs that are 
past due, in the City’s sole discretion.  If the deposit amount falls below 
$5,000.00, the City may require Developer to supplement the deposit by such 
amount as the City may request, up to a total deposit of not more than 
$10,000.00.  If Developer fails to pay any cost when due, the City may 
increase the maximum amount of the required deposit up to $25,000.00.  If 
Developer fails to pay any deposit or pay any cost when due, the City may 
suspend the processing of any and all pending applications, and may order 
Developer to suspend the construction of public improvements within the 
Property, and Developer hereby agrees that any legally or contractually 
imposed time periods for acting on any land division, zoning, acceptance of 
public improvements or other approvals will be tolled until Developer makes 
any required deposit or pays any required costs pursuant to this Section.  
Nothing in this Agreement prevents the City from requiring, in subsequent 
agreements relating to the division or development of the Property, a letter 
of credit, performance bond, deposit or other surety to secure the 
performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement, subsequent 
agreements or both.  Upon the earlier of the termination of this Agreement, 
Developer’s withdraw of all applications and requests relating to any 
proposed development of the Property, or the eventual acceptance of all 
public improvements to be constructed within the Property pursuant to any 
subsequently executed development agreement, the City shall return any 
unused portion of the deposit to Developer.   


 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


4 


B. Developer shall pay to the City, within 30 days after delivery of a written 
request for payment, all legal, engineering, and other consulting or 
administrative fees, costs and expenses incurred by the City in connection 
with an application to amend the Stoughton Urban Service Area, the Dane 
County Water Quality Plan or the Dane County Land Use and Transportation 
Plan to facilitate development of the Property.  Prior to the City applying to 
add the Property to the Stoughton Urban Service Area, Developer shall 
deposit $15,000.00 with the City which the City shall apply to pay the costs 
it may incur in connection with the Urban Service Area amendment process.  
The City shall use the deposit before billing Developer for such costs.  If the 
City’s total costs in connection with the Urban Service Area amendment 
process are less than $15,000.00, then the balance of the deposit shall be 
returned to Developer.  At the time of any City billing to Developer for costs 
pursuant to this section, and following the completion of the Urban Service 
Area amendment process, the City shall provide to Developer copies of 
invoices for outside consultants and a statement of City staff time that 
support the billing or that were incurred by the City in the process of seeking 
to amend the Urban Service Area.   


 
C. Impact and Connection Fees.  The City requires the payment of certain 


impact fees pursuant to Chapter 67 of the Municipal Code of the City of 
Stoughton.  As of the effective date of this Agreement, the City does not 
require the payment of a fee to connect to the City's sanitary sewer system or 
water system.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to relieve Developer 
from paying to the City fees and costs related to the zoning, division or 
development of the Property, and required by the City's ordinances or 
policies. 


 
D. Interest on unpaid fees and costs.  Any amounts not paid when due under this 


Agreement shall accrue interest at the rate of one percent per month. 
 
E. Stoughton Utilities Reimbursement Agreement.  At or before the time this 


Agreement is executed, Developer shall execute a Reimbursement 
Agreement with the City, acting through Stoughton Utilities, in the form 
attached as Exhibit A. 
 


3. OTHER PROVISIONS. 
 


A. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall be effective upon execution. 
 


B. Duration.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 
written notice of termination to the other party.  If this Agreement is 
terminated, Developer shall be responsible to reimburse the City pursuant to 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


5 


this Agreement for all costs, expenses and staff time incurred by the City 
through the date of termination. 
 


C. Delivery of Notices and Requests for Payment.  Requests for payment and 
other notices authorized or required by this Agreement shall be made by U.S. 
Mail, personal delivery or by email as follows: 


 
(1) If to Developer:  St. Marie Law, LLC 


Attn: Daniele Thompson  
214 S. Forrest Street, Suite 8 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
dst@stmarie-law.com 
 


 
(2) If to the City:   Rodney Scheel, Planning Director 


207 S. Forrest Street 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
rjscheel@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
D. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and enforced in 


accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin. Any claim arising under 
this Agreement shall be brought in Dane County Circuit Court, Dane County, 
Wisconsin. 


 
E. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  No claim as a third-party beneficiary under 


this Agreement by any person shall be valid against the City or Developer. 
 
F. Amendments and Modifications.  No amendment or modification to this 


Agreement shall be effective until it is reduced to writing and approved and 
executed by all parties to this Agreement. 


 
G. Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be construed without regard to the 


identity of the party who drafted the various provisions of this Agreement. 
Moreover, each and every provision of this Agreement shall be construed as 
though all parties to this Agreement participated equally in the drafting of 
this Agreement.  As a result of the foregoing, any rule or construction that a 
document is to be construed against the drafting party shall not be applicable 
to this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be construed simply and fairly to 
both parties. 


 
H. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 


the parties and supersedes any and all prior agreements and negotiations 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


6 


between the parties, whether written or oral, relating to the subject matter of 
this Agreement.  


 
I. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement or its application to any person 


or be held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be impaired thereby, and the 
remaining provisions shall be interpreted, applied and enforced so as to 
achieve, as near as may be, the purpose and intent of the Agreement to the 
greatest extent permitted by applicable law. 
 
 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement. 
 
DEVELOPER: 
STI HOLDINGS, INC. 


_____________________________________ 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 


       


 
  


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


7 


 
CITY: 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Dane County, Wisconsin 
 
 
By        
     Tim Swadley, Mayor 
 
 
By:        
     Candee Christen, City Clerk 


 
 


 
Exhibits: 


A - Stoughton Utilities Reimbursement Agreement 
 B - General Concept Plan 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP 
Attorneys for the City of Stoughton 
 
 
By_______________________________ 


Matthew P. Dregne 
 


Attachment A







 


3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


8 


EXHIBIT A 
 
 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW COST REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 


 
Agreement entered into this ________ day of _______________, 20__, by and 


between _________________________(“Developer”) and the City of Stoughton, a 
Wisconsin municipal corporation, acting by and through Stoughton Utilities (“Utility”). 
 


RECITALS 
 
E. This Cost Reimbursement Agreement arises from Developer’s wish to develop the 


Property at _________________________, Stoughton, Wisconsin.  
 


F. Developer would like the Utility to review the proposed development plan 
(“Development Plan”) to identify the impacts it will have on utility services, 
including any increased need for services, which will require the Utility to incur 
costs for internal review and for professional review. 


 
G. The Utility requires Developer to enter into this Agreement to avoid undue expense 


to the Utility rate payers. 
 


AGREEMENT 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, Developer agrees as 
follows: 
 


SECTION 1.  PAYMENT FOR REVIEW SERVICES 
 


1.1. Developer shall pay all costs (“Administrative Costs”) incurred by the Utility 
for internal staff review time and for professional services performed by outside 
consultants on behalf of the Utility in conjunction with the Development Plan, including 
but not limited to planning, engineering, inspection, and legal consultation.  Developer 
acknowledges that Administrative Costs will be incurred in connection with, among other 
things: review of existing utilities; new or proposed utilities construction; review of 
developments concepts, plans and specifications; review of potential utility infrastructure 
impacts and all other professional services necessary. Administrative Costs shall be the 
actual costs for the internal work performed and the actual costs to the Utility on the basis 
of submitted invoices. 


 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


9 


1.2. Bills shall be considered delivered upon personal delivery to Developer or 
upon mailing to Developer at the following address:  


 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
1.3. Developer shall pay the Administrative Costs within thirty (30) days of the 


time when the Utility delivers its bill.  Failure to do so entitles the Utility to withdraw the 
amount of such unpaid bill from the guarantee of payment under section 2 below. 
 


1.4. Developer acknowledges and understands that the professional consultants 
retained by the Utility are acting exclusively on behalf of the Utility and not Developer. 
 


SECTION 2.  GUARANTEE OF PAYMENT 
 


2.1. Developer shall guarantee reimbursement of the Administrative Costs by 
depositing with the Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager cash or a cashier’s check payable 
to the Utility in the amount of $10,000.00, subject to refund or release of unused amounts 
within 60 days following termination of this Agreement as defined in Section 3.   
 


2.2. If at any time the monies on deposit with the Utility pursuant to section 2.1 
are insufficient to pay expenses incurred or anticipated by the Utility for Administrative 
Costs, Developer shall deposit additional amounts within thirty (30) days of written 
demand by the Utility.   
 


2.3. Violation of this Agreement, including but not limited to failure to pay 
amounts when due or failure to deposit amounts required under this section 2, shall entitle 
the Utility to suspend the Utility’s work relating to the proposed development plan. 
 


2.4. The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive 
and shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other remedies available to the Utility at 
law or in equity.   
 


SECTION 3.  TERMINATION 
 


3.1. This Agreement shall terminate upon (a) final rejection of the Development 
Plan by the City Council (b) City Council final approval of the utility infrastructure 
proposed after Utility review of the Development Plan, or (c) Utility receipt of a written 
statement from Developer withdrawing the Development Plan from further consideration. 


 
3.2. Developer’s obligation to reimburse the Utility for Administrative Costs 


incurred to and including the date of termination and the Utility’s rights and remedies to 
enforce such reimbursement shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 
 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


10 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Cost Reimbursement 
Agreement to be effective when executed by Developer. 
 
 
       
 
      By         


Date (print name)        
 
 


 
CITY OF STOUGHTON, 
acting through Stoughton Utilities  
 


 
      By         
Date           Jill Weiss, Utilities Director  
 
 


Attachment A







 


3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


11 


EXHIBIT B 
General Concept Plan 


Attachment A







3WL3439-Cost Reimbursement Agreement (2 02) 


12 


 


Attachment A





		10 R-18-2023 Approve cost reimbursement agreement - Stoughton Trailers Hwy 51

		10a STI Holdings - Attachment A







